DOCUMENT RESUME

ED 272 478 SP 027 865

AUTHOR Fulton, Tara Lynn

TITLE A Bibliography of Overviews of Teaching Methods and

Instructional Approaches Used with Adolescent and

Adult Learning.

PUB DATE Aug 85

NOTE 148p.; Master of Arts in Education report, University

of Texas, Austin.

PUB TYPE Reference Materials - Bibliographies (131)

EDRS PRICE DESCRIPTORS

MF01/PC06 Plus Postage.

ORS *Adolescents; *Adult Education; Continuing Education;

Higher Education; *Instructional Design; *Methods

Courses; Nontraditional Education; Secondary

Education; *Teaching Methods

ABSTRACT

Comparison of teaching methods and instructional approaches is a basic component of beginning methods courses in teacher education. While many textbooks include overviews of some methods, they rarely cover a wide range of methods and they rarely provide pro/con agruments for the proper selection of a method in a given context. This bibliography identifies sources which provide comprehensive overviews of the 41 teaching methods and instructional approaches represented in the literature. Citations are organized under teaching method; a detailed index is provided. (Author/KM)



P 027 869

TEACHING METHODS AND INSTRUCTIONAL APPROACHES USED WITH ADOLESCENT AND ADULT LEARNERS

A BIBLIOGRAPHY OF OVERVIEWS OF

BY

TARA LYNN FULTON, B.A., M.L.S.

REPORT

Presented to the Faculty of the Graduate School of
The University of Texas at Austin
in Partial Fulfillment
of the Requirements
for the Degree of

MASTLR OF ARTS IN EDUCATION

THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS AT AUSTIN

August, 1985

"PERMISSION TO REPRODUCE THIS MATERIAL HAS BEEN GRANTED BY

T.L. Fulton

2

U S DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Office of Educational Research and Improvement
EDUCATIONAL RESOURCES INFORMATION
CENTER (ERIC)

- ☐ This document has been reproduced as received from the person or organization originating it.
- Minor changes have been made to improve reproduction quality
- Points of view or opinion-stated in this document do not necessarily represent official CERI position or policy



A BIBLIOGRAPHY OF OVERVIEWS OF

TEACHING METHODS AND INSTRUCTIONAL APPROACHES

USED WITH ADOLESCENT AND ADULT LEARNERS

Tara Lynn Fulton Master's Report The University of Texas at Austin July, 1985

Abstract

Comparison of teaching methods and instructional approaches is a basic component of beginning methods courses in teacher education. While many textbooks include overviews of some methods, they rarely cover a wide range of methods and they rarely provide pro/con arguments for the proper selection of a method in a given context. This bibliography identifies sources which provide comprehensive overviews of the forty-one teaching methods and instructional approaches represented in the literature.

ERIC Descriptors

Adult Education
Continuing Education
Educational Methods
Educational Technology
Higher Education
Instructional Design
Nontraditional Education
Secondary Education
Teaching Methods



DEDICATION

This bibliography is dedicated to the three educators
who will always remain closest to my heart -my parents, John and Anna May Fulton,
and my husband, John Daniel Marshall.



A BIBLIOGRAPHY OF OVERVIEWS OF TEACHING METHODS AND INSTRUCTIONAL APPROACHES USED WITH ADOLESCENT AND ADULT LEARNERS

APPROVED:



ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Dr. Wilma Griffin, a home economics teacher educator at The University of Texas at Austin does not lecture on teaching methods: she asks each of her students to read about a teaching method and to report on it to the rest of the class. The difficulties her students encountered in locating sources prompted me to pursue this bibliography. I am grateful to her for the idea.

For assistance in conceptualizing, editing, and persisting with this bibliography, I am indebted to Dr.

John Laska and Dr. Marilla Svinicki of The University of Texas at Austin and to my husband, John Daniel Marshall.

T.L.F.

July 4, 1985





TABLE OF CONTENTS

| Introduction | |
|---|----|
| Purpose of the Bibliography | 1 |
| Criteria for Teaching Method Inclusion | 2 |
| Criteria for Citation Inclusion | |
| Categorizing Methodology | |
| Indexing Methodology | |
| Search Methodology | |
| Overviews of Teaching Methods | |
| Advance Organizers | 13 |
| Assignments | |
| Audio-Tutorial Method | |
| Audiovisual Aids | 18 |
| Books and Readings | |
| Case Studies | |
| Competency-Based Instruction | 27 |
| Computer-Assisted Instruction | |
| Contract Learning | |
| Cooperative Education and Service Study | |
| Demonstrations | 36 |
| Discovery Learning | |
| Discussion | 39 |
| Distance Education | 43 |
| Drill and Practice | |
| Experiential Methods | |
| Field Trips | |



٧

| | independent Study | |
|----|------------------------------------|-----|
| | Individualized Instruction | 51 |
| | Inquiry Learning | 52 |
| | Laboratory Method | |
| | Learning Centers | 55 |
| | Lectures | |
| | Personalized System of Instruction | 61 |
| | Problem Method | |
| | Programmed Instruction | |
| | Projects and Reports | |
| | Questioning | |
| | Recitation | |
| | Reinforcement | |
| | Resource Persons | |
| | Reviewing and Summarizing | |
| | Role Playing | |
| | Simulations and Games | |
| | Small Group Instruction | |
| | Socratic Method | |
| | Task Analysis | |
| | Team Teaching | |
| | Television and Fi ¹ m | |
| | Tutoring | |
| | Videodiscs | |
| | | |
| n | dex | 103 |
| | | |
| 31 | bliography | 136 |
| | | |



INTRODUCTION

Purpose of the Bibliography

The literature on teaching methods and instructional approaches is of several kinds: prescriptions for using them effectively, research studies judging student outcomes, descriptions of model programs, reviews of the literature, and general outlines of available choices. Sources which explain what a given method or approach is, how it is used in instruction, what the theoretical bases are upon which it is grounded, and what its advantages and disadvantages are considered to be are referred to here as "overviews."

Overviews of teaching methods are not as easy to locate as one might assume. One cannot simply locate a heading in the library card catalog or in the ERIC indices and hope to find a handy list of references. They are buried in masses of "how-to" guides, program outlines, and researcher-oriented materials. Particularly with more traditional methods, overviews are more likely to be found as sections of books on how to teach or how people learn. Overviews are also difficult to find because they are not published regularly



1

-- rather, they tend to appear when a new method or approach is in the forefront, at which time one finds both condemnations of the old and justifications for the new. This bibliography isolates places where such overviews can be found. It can be used as a resource by education majors, teacher educators, faculty developers, and teachers who are looking for some new ideas. It can also be of use to administrators making system-wide decisions on instructional options and instructional change. Lastly, the author hopes that librarians will find it helpful for reference and collection development purposes.

Criteria for Teaching Method Inclusion

Teaching methods and instructional approaches are ways in which content is conveyed to students and ways in which teaching/learning situations are arranged to facilitate that transfer. Laska (1984, 42) defines teaching method as "a procedure for the impingement and student reception of learning stimuli" and the more inclusive term instructional approach as "the delivery system for the curricular content." While Berliner and Gage (1976, 5) use teaching methods to convey both meanings, their explanation



coincides with the inclusion and exclusion policies of this report:

Teaching methods are recurrent instructional processes, applicable to various subject matters, and usable by more than one teacher. They are recurrent in that the activities are repeated over intervals measured in minutes or weeks. They are instructional processes, such as patterned teacher behavior (for example, lecturing, discipation, and recitation); delivery systems for curriculum (for example, printed matter, film, programmed instruction, and computer-assisted instruction); and organizational structures for promoting learning (for example, tutoring and independent study).

These instructional processes promote student learning of different kinds of various subject matters. The term "teaching method" should not be applied to instructional processes that are useful in teaching only, say arithmetic (for example, using Cuisenaire rods), or reading (for example, conducting phonics drill). The ways in which the teaching of specific subject matter goes on we call "teaching techniques," which are studied in courses on curriculum and instruction in reading, science, social studies, mathematics, English, and the like. The requirement that a teaching method be usable by more than one teacher means that it should not depend upon the talents, traits, or resources unique to an individual teacher. Sather, the use of a teaching method should, in principle, be accessible to any trained teacher.

Admittedly, this rough definition of the term *teaching method* provides only a general concept with much surplus meaning. Some methods have been found in classrooms for centuries, like lecturing, discussion, and the use of printed matter, and other methods, such as computer-assisted instruction and simulation games, are hardly more than ten years old.

This report does not attempt to distinguish categories upon which even scholars cannot agree. The index includes sections called teaching methods,



delivery systems, and instructional approaches to illustrate these conceptual categories. Examples of items that appear in several categories are computer-assisted instruction (a delivery system at all times, used as an adjunct method of instruction for activities such as drill and practice, and an approach in that full systems such as PLATO exist for independent study) and case studies (which can be written and presented as materials for delivery or can be used as a method for an entire course content).

By this definition of teaching methods/instructional approaches, one might include the techniques which go into the planning, motivating, managing, disciplining, rapport building, and evaluating activities of teaching. While some of the citations in this bibliography will touch on these aspects, only items which focus on how the methods and approaches are used to structure and deliver content have been listed. For example, while reinforcement can be used as a classroom management technique, citations included in this bibliography are ones that deal with reinforcement as an instructional model. Learner-controlled instruction, as it is currently understood, addresses the design and evaluation elements within individualized instruction, so there is no section for it in this report. The literature on andragogy is of a learning theory nature, so andragogy is



of their all-encompassing nature, most of the current systems analysis applications to instructional design (e.g. Reigeluth's Elaboration Theory) are excluded. However, the uses of advance organizers and task analysis are included to the extent that they reflect the sequencing of the presentation of learning stimuli.

Emphasis is on techniques for attaining cognitive, affective, or psychomotor objectives rather than on techniques of applicability to only one of these domains. The admitted bias of the bibliography is toward coverage of cognitive content of all kinds. Major models excluded because they focus only on the affective outcomes of education include Rogerian Non-Directive Teaching. Glasser's Classroom Meeting model, humanistic education, confluent education, and awareness training.

Many teaching methods and models are applicable only to teaching one content area or one skill. For this reason methods such as Thelen's Group investigation model for democratic understandings, Oliver and Shaver's Jurisprudential model for social relations, Massialas and Cox's Social inquiry model, subject matter curriculum study methods, microteaching, synectics for creativity, T-group laboratories for sensitivity and leadership



training, and values clarification are not included. By the same token, the "problem method" here means an approach to content coverage rather than the use of problem-solving to teach thinking skills, and "supervised study" is included only as it relates to assignments and not as a means of teaching study skills.

As the title increates, the methods are those used with adolescents and adults. Piaget's Development model, Individually Guided Education, open classrooms, and the Montessori method are examples of categories of teaching methods excluded because of their almost exclusive use with children.

Criteria for Citation Inclusion

The basic criterion for inclusion is that the source be an "overview" as defined in the purpose statement of this report. All so therefore describe the method/approach's use and in some way indicate its value and/or limitations. In some cases the sources indicate when a particular method has been found to be appropriate and/or why it is considered a sound, effective, and desirable one. Some items address the philosophical



and/or psychological underpinnings of the method, i.e. the principles upon which it is based. Still others offer comparisons with other, usually more outmoded methods and thereby indicate relative benefits.

Some reviews of the literature and some theoretical treatises fit this criterion, but one would have to read them exceedingly carefully in order to extract the relevant information. Since this bibliography is intended for practitioners rather than theorists or researchers, only sources which are readily identified and read as overviews are provided. Furthermore, items which focus only on how people learn from instructional methods and approaches and not on what a teacher does to facilitate that learning are excluded. The author acknowledges that in some cases these are fine line judgement calls.

It is beyond the scope of this bibliography to investigate overviews of the use of methods and approaches in individual disciplines and with special populations. While materials in both of these areas are extremely fruitful (for example, role playing in the social sturres, demonstrations and laboratories in science and home economics, and reinforcement with the learning disabled), they are also plentiful and would constitute a bibliography in their own right.



As the title indicates, this bibliography is limited to materials of applicability to secondary, higher, or adult education. Particularly in the case of audiovisual aids and learning centers, the author found that the examples given in many texts were so specific to youngsters that a teacher of adolescents and adults would have difficulty applying the principles in his/her classroom.

Only English language items were reviewed. All items devote a minimum of three solid pages to the method/approach.

No format (e.g. book, microform, speech) was specifically excluded at the outset. However, because of their research nature, no special effort was made to identify dissertations, theses, and reports, and none was subsequently added. Most items are parts of books, encyclopedia and yearbook entries, and journal articles. Some are ERIC and government documents.

The author was unable to obtain copies of some potential sources for review. In most cases the references to these sources did not strongly indicate that the sources would fit the author's criteria for inclusion, and these sources were excluded. If, however, the citing references described or quoted a source in sufficient detail to indicate that it would indeed



belong in the bibliography, the source was included but followed by the designation "[unexamined]."

Categorizing Methodology

Categorization of teaching methods and instructional approaches is a complex task, partially because of the way they blend together or have evolved over time, and partially because even the experts disagree. The sources listed in bibliography of this report assisted the author in conceptualizing categories and interrelationships among them. Because of these complexities, the bibliography has been arranged alphabetically with categories representing no particular philosophy of the author's but rather the structure of the available literature. For example, the distinction between Problem Method, Discovery Learning, and Inquiry Learning may seem somewhat arbitrary, but educational writers have tended to treat them differently over the years, so they are separated. Some categories are clearly subcategories of others (e.g., Personalized System of Instruction is an example of Reinforcement and Competency-Based Instruction) while other categories are a conglomerate of a variety of methods (e.g.,



Audiovisual Aids). Some of the approaches, such as Team Teaching, Learning Centers, and Independent Study may make use of a variety of methods. Other categories, such as Lectures and Demonstrations are intuitively obvious and are treated as such in books on methods. The names given to categories also reflect the prevailing designations cited in the literature.

The decision to separate out a single method or approach from its subsuming method or approach came when at least five sources were found to focus entirely on that one method. If available sources treated the items as inseparable, the author did likewise. For example, there are many Discussion and Small Group Instruction techniques, but none of them had five sources which devoted at least three full pages to it, so they remain as single categories. On the other hand, relationships between Audio-Tutorial Method, Learning Centers, Laboratory Method, Personalized System of Instruction, and Independent Study are close, but there was enough specific literature available to separate them.

Indexing Methodology

The interrelationships among these categories is clarified by use of



the index. The index, however, was not designed to discriminate broader, narrower, and related terms as does the *Thesaurus of ERIC Descriptors*. The index provides "see" cross-references from terms not used as categories to relevant categories which have been used. It also provides "see also" cross-references from categories used to related categories also used. No cross-references are provided to related terms which are not used as categories. Therefore, the index is designed not only for persons who have a method or approach in mind and want to locate the categories where overviews can be found, but also for those who vaguely know they want some form of, say, "student-centered" or "individualized" approach and want to find some options.

The index was based primarily upon the relationships found in the sources cited and in those listed in the bibliography. The *Thesaurus of ERIC Descriptors* was consulted as a double-check. No page references are provided in the index, since the user can easily locate the categories alphabetically or in the table of contents.



Search Methodology

The general methods and reference books listed in the bibliography of this report were used to find citations to major sources of information.

These major sources in turn cited other sources, and so on. An ERIC search, the card catalog of the General Libraries of The University of Texas at Austin, the OCLC database, Subject Guide to Books in Print, and Subject Guide to Forthcoming Books were used to update and supplement these citations. Serendipity in a library of over five million volumes is not to be down-played as a search method.



OVERVIEWS OF TEACHING METHODS

Advance Organizers

- Ausubel, David P. "In Defense of Advance Organizers: A Reply to the Critics." Review of Educational Research 28 (Spring 1978): 251-157.
- Ausubel, David P. *The Psychology of Meaningful Verbal Learning: An Introduction to School Learning.* New York, NY: Grune and Stratton, Inc., 1963, pp. 81-87.
- Ausubel, David P.; Novak, Joseph D; and Hanesian, Helen. *Educational Psychology: A Cognitive View*. 2nd ed. New York, NY: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, Inc., 1978, pp. 170-182.
- Dembo, Myron H. *Teaching for Learning: Applying Educational Psychology in the Classroom*. Santa Monica, Ct: Goodyear Publishing Co., 1977, pp. 284–291.
- Hartley, James and Davies, Ivor K. "Preinstructional Strategies: The Role of Pretests, Behavioral Objectives, Overviews and Advance Organizers." Review of Educational Research 46 (Spring 1976): 239-265.
- Miller, John P. *The Educational Spectrum: Orientations to Curriculum*. New York, NY and London, England: Longman, Inc., 1983, pp. 113-117.
- Weil, Marsha L. and Murphy, Joseph. "Instruction Processes." In Encyclopedia of Educational Research, vol. 2, 5th ed., edited by Harold E. Mitzel, pp. 891-893. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing Co., Inc., Free Press, 1982; London, England: Collier Macmillan Publishers, 1982.



13

Assignments

- Bossing, Nelson L. *Progressive Methods of Teaching in Secondary Schools*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1942, pp. 270-310.
- Brink, William G. *Directing Study Activities in Secondary Schools*. Garden City, NY: Doubleday, Doran and Co., Inc., 1937, pp. 110-154.
- Burton, William H. *The Guidance of Learning Activities*. 3rd ed. New York, NY: Appleton-Century-Crofts, Inc., 1962, pp. 289-297.
- Callahan, Sterling G. Successful Teaching in Secondary Schools. Chicago, IL: Scott, Foresman and Co., 1965, pp. 221-230, 245-249.
- Carr, William G. and Waage, John. *The Lesson Assignment*. Stanford University, CA: Stanford University Press, 1931; London, England: Oxford University Press, 1931, pp. 1-16.
- Clark, Leonard H. and Starr, Irving S. Secondary School Teaching Techniques.

 3rd ed. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing Co., Inc., 1976; London,
 England: Collier Macmillan Publishers, 1976, pp. 293-296.
- Colvin, Stephen Sheldon. *An Introduction to High School Teaching*. New York, NY: Macmillan Co., 1929, pp. 360-381.
- Coulter, F. "Homework." In *The International Encyclopedia of Education:*Research and Studies, vol. 4, edited by Torsten Husen and T. Neville
 Postlethwaite, pp. 2289-2294. Oxford, England: Pergamon Press Ltd.,
 1985.
- Douglass, Harl R. *Modern Methods in High School Teaching*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1926, pp. 48-61.
- Earhart, Lida B. Types of Teaching. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1915, pp. 80-92.



- Hedges, William D. "Homework." In *The Encyclopedia of Education*, vol. 4, edited by Lee C. Deighton, pp. 479-482. [New York, NY]: Macmillan Co. and Free Press, 1971.
- Holley, Charles Elmer. *High School Teachers' Methods*. Champaign, IL: Garrard Press, Publishers, 1937, pp. 94-110.
- Kilzer, Louis R. Supervised Study for Teachers and Administrators in Elementary Schools, High Schools and Junior Colleges. New York, NY: Professional and Technical Press, 1931, pp. 247-261.
- LaConte, Ronald T. Homework as a Learning Experience. What Research Says to the Teacher. Washington, DC: National Education Association, 1981. Reprint. Bethesda, MD: ERIC Document Reproduction Service, ED 217 022, 1981.
- Leonard, Joan M.; Fallon, John J.; and von Arx, Harold. *General Methods of Effective Teaching: A Practical Approach*. New York, NY: Thomas Y. Crowell Co., 1972, pp. 159-173, 245-256.
- National Education Association. *Homework*. What Research Says to the Teacher. Washington, DC: National Education Association, 1975. Reprint. Bethesda, MD: ERIC Document Reproduction Service, ED 118 559, 1975, pp. 12-28.
- Parker, Samuel Chester. *Methods of Teaching in High Schools*. Rev. ed. Boston, MA: Ginn and Co., 1920, pp. 391-417.
- Risk, Thomas M. *Principles and Practices of Teaching in Secondary Schools*. 4th ed. New York, NY: American Book Co., 1968, pp. 199-205.
- Rivlin, Harry N. *Teaching Adolescents in Secondary Schools*. 2nd ed. New York, NY: Appleton-Century-Crofts, Inc., 1961, pp. 169-174.
- Stormzand, Martin J. *Progressive Methods of Teaching*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1927, pp. 88-139.



- Strebel, Ralph F. and Morehart, Grover C. *The Nature and Meaning of Teaching*. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., Inc., 1929, pp. 137-154.
- Thut, I. N. and Gerberich, J. Raymond. Foundations of Method for Secondary Schools. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., Inc., 1949, pp.117-136.
- Waples, Douglas. *Procedures in High-School Teaching* ..ew York, NY: Macmillan Co., 1925, pp. 120-132, 149-162.
- Yoakam, Gerald A. *The Improvement of the Assignment*. New York, NY: Macmillan Co., 1932, pp. 1-88.
- Yoakam, Gerald A. and Simpson, Robert G. Modern Methods and Techniques of Teaching. New York, NY: Macmillan Co., 1948, pp. 170-185, 200-214.



Audio-Tutorial Method

- Cross, K. Patricia. Accent on Learning: Improving Instruction and Reshaping the Curriculum. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1976, pp. 83-89.
- Erickson, Carlton W. H. and Curl, David H. Fundamentals of Teaching with Audiovisual Technology. 2nd ed. New York, NY: Macmillan Co., 1972; London, England: Collier-Macmillan Ltd., 1972, pp. 247-258.
- Kozma, Robert B.; Belle, Lawrence W.; and Williams, George W.

 Instructional Techniques in Higher Education. Englewood Cliffs, NJ:
 Educational Technology Publications, 1978, pp. 291-304.
- Postlethwait, Samuel N.; Novak, Joseph Donald; and Murray, Hallard
 Thomas, Jr. *The Audio-Tutorial Approach to Learning Through Independent Study and Integraced Experiences*. 3rd ed. Minneapolis, MN:
 Burgess Publishing Co., 1972, np. 7-23, 162-166.
- Russell, James D. *The Audio-Tutorial System*. Instructional Design Library, vol. 3. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1978, pp. 3-23, 43-50.
- Thornton, James W., Jr. and Brown, James W. New Media and College Teaching. Washington, DC: National Education Association, 1968, pp. 69-80. Reprint. Bethesda, MD: ERIC Document Reproduction Service, ED 026 863, 1968.



Audiovisual Aids

- Arnheim, Rugolf. "Virtues and Vices of the Visual Media." In Media and Symbols: The Forms of Expression, Communication, and Education, edited by David R. Olson, pp. 180-210. Seventy-third Yearbook of the National Society for the Study of Education, part 1. Chicago, IL: University of Cl. :ago Press, 1974.
- Blount, Nathan S. and Klausmeier, Herbert J. *Teaching in the Secondary School*. 3rd ed. New York, NY: Harper and Row, Publishers, 1968, pp. 324-349.
- Bossing, Nelson L. *Progressive Methods of Teaching in Secondary Schools*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1942, pp. 381-411.
- Clark, Leonard H. "Teaching Tools." In *Teaching in the Secondary School:*Planning for Competence, edited by Joseph F. Callahan and
 Leonard H. Clark, pp. 266-292. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing
 Co., Inc., 1977; London, England: Collier Macmillan Publishers, 1977.
- Cross, A. J. Foy and Cypher, Irene F. Audio-Visual Education. New York, NY: Thomas Y. Crowell Co., 1961, pp. 73-214.
- Dale, Edgar. Audiovisual Methods in Teaching. 3rd ed. New York, NY: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, Inc., 1969, pp. 140-160.
- Douglass, Harl R. *Modern Methods in High School Teaching*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1926, pp. 180-204.
- Fuhrmann, Barbara Schneider and Grasha, Anthony F. *The Practical Handbook for College Teachers*. Boston, MA: Little, Brown and Co., 1983, pp. 221-246.
- Grambs, Jean D. and Iverson, William J. *Modern Methods in Secondary Education*. New York, NY: William Sloane Associates Publishers, 1952, pp. 106-118, 121-126, 129-130.



- Hansen, Kenneth H. *High School Teaching*. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1957, pp. 225-234.
- Henderson, Norman K. *University Teaching*. Hong Kong, China: Hong Kong University Press, 1969, pp. 88-123.
- Hoban, Charles F. "Obstacles to the Use of Audio-visual Materials." In *Audio-visual Materials of Instruction*, edited by Nelson B. Henry, pp. 53-71. Forty-eighth Yearbook of the National Society for the Study of Education. Chicago, IL: University of Chicago Press, 1949.
- Jenkins, Janet. "Do Audiovisual Media Possess Unique Teaching Capabilitities?" In *The Educational Use of Mass Media*. World Bank Staff Working Paper, no. 491. Wushington, DC: World Bank, 1981, pp. 11-25.
- Leonard, Joan M.; Fallon, John J.; and von Arx, Harold. *General Methods of Effective Teaching: A Practical Approach*. New York, NY: Thomas Y. Crowell Co., 1972, pp. 94-146.
- McKean, Robert C. *Principles and Methods in Secondary Education*. Columbus, OH: Charles E. Merrill Books, Inc., 1962, pp. 159-168.
- Mueller, Alfred Don. *Teaching in Secondary Schools*. New York, NY and London, England: Century Co., 1928, pp. 199-241.
- Reeves, Charles Everand. Standards for High School Teaching: Methods and Technique. New York, NY and London, England: D. Appleton-Century Co., 1932, pp. 270-280.
- Risk, Thomas M. Principles and Practices of Teaching in Secondary Schools.
 4th ed. New York, NY: American Book Co., 1968, pp. 357-391.
- Rivlin, Harry N. *Teaching Adolescents in Secondary Schools*. 2nd ed. New York, NY: Appleton-Century-Craffs, Inc., 1961, pp. 224-239.



- Smith, Hayden R. and Nanel, Thomas S. *Instructional Media in the Learning Process*. Columbus, OH: Charles E. Merrill Publishing Co., 1972, pp. 3-17.
- Stephens, Michael D. and Roderick, Gordon W. *Teaching Techniques in Adult Education*. Newton Abbot, England: David and Charles (Publishers) Ltd., 1971, pp. 118-138.
- Umstattd, James Greenleaf. *Secondary School Teaching*. 3rd ed. Boston, MA: Ginn and Co., 1953, pp. 290-359.
- Wellington, C. Burleigh and Wellington, Jean. *Teaching for Critical Thinking with Emphasis on Secondary Education*. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., Inc., i960, pp., 140-60.
- Wittich, Walter A. and Schuller, Charles F. *Instructional Technology: Its Nature and Use.* 5th ed. New York, NY: Harper and Row, Publishers,
 1973, pp. 45-81.



Books and Readings

- Beechhold, Henry F. *The Creative Classroom: Teaching without Textbooks*. New York, NY: Charles Scribner's Sons, 1971, pp. 3-18.
- Blount, Nathan S. and Klausmeier, Herbert J. *Teaching in the Secondary School*. 3rd ed. New York, NY: Harper and Row, Publishers, 1968, pp. 293-303.
- Brown, James W.; Lewis, Richard B; and Harcleroad, Fred F. AV Instruction: Technology, Media, and Methods. 6th ed. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., 1983, pp. 383-401.
- Burton, William H. *The Nature and Direction of Learning*. New York, NY and London, England: D. Appleton and Co., 1929, pp. 413-429.
- Callahan, Sterling G. Successful Teaching in Secondary Schools. Chicago, IL: Scott, Foresman and Co., 1965, pp. 216-221.
- Carroll, John B. "The Potentials and Limitations of Print as a Medium of Instruction." In *Media and Symbols: The Forms of Expression, Communication, and Education*, edited by David R. Olson, pp. 151-179. Seventy-third Yearbook of the National Society for the Study of Education, part 1. Chicago, IL: University of Chicago Press, 1974.
- Clark, Leonard H. "Materials of Instruction." In *Teaching in the Secondary School: Planning for Competence*, edited by Joseph F. Callahan and Leonard H. Clark, pp. 294–299. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing Co., Inc., 1977; London, England: Collier Macmillan Publishers, 1977.
- Clark, Leonard H. and Starr, Irving S. Secondary School Teaching Techniques.

 3rd ed. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing Co., Inc., 1976; London,
 England: Collier Macmillan Publishers, 1976, pp. 264-277.



- Crow, Lester D. and Crow, Alice. *Introduction to Education: Fundamental Principles and Modern Practices*. New York, NY: American Book Co., 1947, pp. 405-412.
- Dale, Edgar. Audiovisual Methods in Teaching. 3rd ed. New York, NY: Holt, Rinehart, and Winston, 1969, pp. 665-686.
- Deighton, Lee C. "Textbooks: Role in Education." In *The Encyclopedia of Education*, vol. 9, edited by Lee C. Deighton, pp. 210-214. [New York, NY]: Macmillan Co. and Free Press, 1971.
- Eble, Kenneth Eugene. The Craft of Teaching: A Guide to Mastering the Professor's Art. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1979.
- Erickson, Carlton W. H. and Curl, David H. *Fundamentals of Teaching with Audiovisual Technology*. 2nd ed. New York, NY: Macmillan Co., 1972; London, England: Collier-Macmillan Ltd., 1972, pp. 81-87.
- Flanagan, Cathleen C. Books and Other Print Materials. Instructional Media Library, vol. 1. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1981, pp. 3-43.
- Flanagan, Cathleen C. "Printed Materials in the Classroom." In *The International Encyclopedia of Education: Research and Studies*, vol. 7, edited by Torsten Husen and T. Neville Postlethwaite, pp. 4037-4041. Oxford, England: Pergamon Press Ltd., 1985.
- Foster, G. C. F. "Books in University Teaching." In *University Teaching in Transition*, edited by David Layton, pp. 81-89. Edinburgh, Scotland: Oliver and Boyd Ltd., 1968.
- Grambs, Jean D. and Iverson, William J. *Modern Methods in Secondary Education*. New York, NY: William Sloane Associates Publishers, 1952, pp. i18-120, 126-129, 130-133.
- Hall-Quest, Alfred Lawrence. *The Textbook: How to Use and Judge It.* New York, NY: Macmillan Co., 1920, pp. 1-13.



- Hansen, Kenneth H. *High School Teaching*. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1957, pp. 213-224, 234-235.
- Kozma, Robert B.; Belle, Lawrence W.; and Williams, George W.

 Instructional Techniques in Higher Education. Englewood Cliffs, NJ:
 Educational Technology Publications, 1978, pp. 161-174.
- Lowman, Joseph. *Mastering the Techniques of Teaching*. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1984, pp. 167-170.
- McKeachie, Wilbert J. *Teaching Tips: A Guidebook for the Beginning College Teacher*. 7th ed. Lexington, MA and Toronto, Canada: D. C. Heath and Co., 1978, pp. 101-104.
- McKean, Robert C. *Principles and Methods in Secondary Education*. Columbus, OH: Charles E. Merrill Books, Inc., 1962, pp. 149-159.
- McMurray, Foster and Cronbach, Lee J. "The Controversial Past and Present of the Text." In *Text Materials in Modern Education: A Comprehensive Theory and Platform for Research*, edited by Lee J. Cronbach, pp. 9-27. Urbana, IL: University of Illinois Press, 1955.
- McMurray, Foster and Cronbach, Lee J. "The Proper Function of Text Materials." In *Text Materials in Modern Education: A Comprehensive Theory and Platform for Research*, edited by Lee J. Cronbach, pp. 28-58. Urbana, IL: University of Illinois Press, 1955.
- McMurry, Charles A. and McMurry, Frank M. *The Method of the Recitation*. Bloomington, IL: Public-School Publishing Co., 1898, pp. 280-291.
- Mueller, Alfred Don. *Teaching in Secondary Schools*. New York, NY and London, England: Century Co., 1928, pp. 89-116.
- Parker, Samuel Chester. *Methods of Teaching in High Schools*. Rev. ed. Boston, MA: Ginn and Co., 1920, pp. 418-435.
- Risk, Thomas M. *Principles and Practices of Teaching in Secondary Schools*.

 3rd ed. New York, NY: American Book Co., 1968, pp. 206-212.



- Rothkopf, Ernst Z. "Writing to Teach and Reading to Learn: A Perspective on the Psychology of Written Instruction." In *The Psychology of Teaching Methods*, edited by N. L. Gage, pp. 91-129. Seventy-fifth Yearbook of the National Society for the Study of Education, part 1. Chicago, IL: University of Chicago Press, 1976.
- Stormzand, Martin J. *Progressive Methods of Teaching*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1927, pp. 1-69.
- Thomas, R. Murray and Swartout, Sherwin G. *Integrated Teaching Materials*. New York, NY: David McKay Co., Inc., 1963, pp. 55-118.



Case Studies

- Armistead, Colin. "How Useful Are Case Studies?" *Training and Development Journal* 38 (February 1984): 75-77, [unexamined].
- Buxton, Claude E. *College Teaching: A Psychologist's View*. New York, NY: Harcourt, Brace and Co., 1956, pp. 222-228.
- Fisher, Charles F. "Being There Vicariously by Case Studies." In *On College Teaching: A Guide to Contemporary Practices*, edited by Ohmer Milton and Associates, pp. 258-285. San Francisco,CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1978.
- Holley, Charles Emmer. *The Teacher's Technique*. New York, NY: Century Co., 1926, pp. 96-101.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. College Teaching Today: A Handbook for Postsecondary Instruction. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1980, pp. 199-223.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. *Learning and Teaching in the Secondary School*. 2nd ed. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1978, pp. 211-233.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. *The Professional Teacher's Handbook: A Guide for Improving Instruction in Today's Middle and Secondary Schools.*3rd ed. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc. 1982, pp. 386-410.
- Hunt, Pearson. "The Case Method of Instruction." Harvard Educational Review 21 (Summer 1951): 175-192.
- Kelly, Helen. "Case Method Training: What It !s, How It Works." Training: The Magazine of Human Resource Development 20 (February 1983): 46-49.
- Pigors, Paul. "Case Method." In *Training and Development Handbook: A Guide to Human Resource Development*, 2nd ed., edited by Robert L. Craig, pp. 35-1-35-12. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., 1976.



- Rogers, Jennifer. *Adults Learning*. 2nd ed. Milton Keynes, England: Open University Press, 1977, pp. 140-159.
- Stenzel, Anne K. and Feeney, Helen M. Learning by the Case Method: Practical Approaches for Community Leaders. New York, NY: Seabury Press, 1970, pp. 7-15, 114-117.
- Upgren, Arthur. "The Case Study of Teaching." In *The Two Ends of the Log:*Learning and Teaching in Today's College, edited by Russell M. Cooper,
 pp. 238-241. Minneapolis, MN: University of Minnesota Press, 1958.
- Walter, Gordon A. and Marks, Stephen E. Experiential Learning and Change: Theory, Design and Practice. New York, NY: John Wiley and Sons, Inc., 1981, pp. 201-207.
- Watson, Charles E. "The Effectiveness of the Case Study Method." College Student Journal 9 (1975): 109-116, [unexamined].



Competency-Based Instruction

- Anderson, L. W. and Block, J. H. "Mastery Learning Model of Teaching and Learning." In *The International Encyclopedia of Education: Research and Studies*, vol. 6, edited by Torsten Husen and T. Neville Postlethwaite, pp. 3219-3230. Oxford, England: Pergamon Press Ltd., 1985.
- Bloom, Benjamin S. All Our Children Learning: A Primer for Parents, Teachers, and Other Educators. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., 1981, pp. 153-175.
- Bloom, Benjamin S. "Learning for Mastery." UCLA-CSEIP *Evaluation Comment* 1 (May 1968): [unexamined].
- Bloom, Benjamin S. "Learning for Mastery." In *Individualized Instruction* and Learning, compiled and edited by Madan Mohan and Ronald E. Hull, pp. 5-32. Chicago, IL: Nelson-Hall Co., 1974.
- Corcoran, Thomas B. "Prospects and Problems of Competency-Based Education." In *Renewing Higher Education: The Competency-Based Approach*, edited by Vance T. Peterson, pp. 12-23. [Toledo, OH]: University of Toledo, Center for the Study of Higher Education, 1976. Reprint. Bethesda, MD: ERIC Document Reproduction Service, ED 127 874, 1976.
- Cross, K. Patricia. Accent on Learning: Improving Instruction and Reshaping the Curriculum. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1976, pp. 75-83.
- Klingstedt, Joe Lars. "Philosophical Basis for Competency-Based Education." In Competency-Based Education: An Introduction, edited by Richard W. Burns and Joe Lars Klingstedt, pp. 7-19. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1972.



- Torsten, Kay Pomerance. *The Mastery Approach to Competency-Based Education*. New York, NY: Academic Press, Inc., 1977, pp. 3-27, 41-54, 179-192.
- Woditch, Gary A. "Specifying and Achieving Competencies." In *On College Teaching: A Guide to Contemporary Practices*, edited by Ohmer Milton and Associates, pp. 236-257. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1978.
- Young, Jon I. and Van Mondfrans, Adrian P. "Psychological Implications of Competency-Based Education." In *Competency-Based Education: An Introduction*, edited by Richard W. Burns and Joe Lars Klingstedt, pp. 20-29. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1972.



Computer-Assisted Instruction

- Bitter, Gary G. and Camuse, Ruth A. *Using a Microcomputer in the Classroom*. Reston, VA: Reston Publishing Co., 1984, [unexamined].
- Bork, Alfre 1. "Computers in the Classroom." In *On College Teaching : A Guide to Contemporary Practices*, edited by Ohmer Milton and Associates, pp. 184-211. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1978.
- Bork, Alfred. "The Fourth Revolution Computers and Learning." In *The Computer: Extension of the Human Mind*, pp. 12-28. Eugene, OR: ERIC Clearinghouse on Educational Management, 1983. Reprint. ERIC Document Reproduction Service, ED 219 859, 1983.
- Bork, Alfred. Learning With Computers. Bedford, MA: Digital Equipment Corp., 1981, pp. 1-25, 247-259.
- Bork, Alfred. *Personal Computers for Education*. New York, NY: Harper and Row, 1985, [unexamined].
- Brophy, Jere and Hannon, Patrick. *The Future of Microcomputers in the Classroom*. Occasional Paper no. 76. East Lansing, MI: Michigan State University, Institute for Research in Teaching, 1984, pp. 5-34.
- Brown, James W.; Lewis, Richard B.; and Harcleroad, Fred F. AV Instruction: Technology, Media, and Methods. 6th ed. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., 1983, pp. 338-361.
- Bunderson, C. Victor and Faust, Gerald W. "Programmed and Computer-Assisted Instruction." In *The Psychology of Teaching Methods*, edited by N. L. Gage, pp. 46-54, 65-77. Seventy-fifth Yearbook of the National Society for the Study of Education, part 1. Chicago, IL: University of Chicago Press, 1976.
- Bundy, Robert F. "Computer-Assisted Instruction Where Are We?" Phi Delta Kappan 49 (April 1968): 424-429.



- Caffrey, John. "The Role of Computers in the Individualization of Education." In *The Individual and the System: Personalizing Higher Education*, edited by W. John Minter, pp. 123–136. Boulder, CO: Western Interstate Commission for Higher Education, 1967.
- Chambers, Jack A. and Sprecher, Jerry W. *Computer-Assisted Instruction:*//ts Use in the Classroom. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall, 1983,
 [unexamined].
- Cross, K. Patricia. Accent on Learning: Improving Instruction and Reshaping the Curriculum. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1976, pp. 60-70.
- Gerver, Elisabeth. *Computers and Adult Learning*. Milton Keynes, England: Open University Press, 1984, [unexamined].
- Hall, Keith. "Computer-Based Education." in *Encyclopedia of Educational Research*, vol. 1, 5th ed., edited by Harold E. Mitzel, pp. 353-367. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing Co., Inc., Free Press, 1982; London, England: Collier Macmillan Publishers, 1982.
- Hickey, Albert E. "Computer-Assisted and Computer-Managed Instruction." In *Training and Development Handbook:* A Guide to Human Resource Development, 2nd ed., edited by Robert L. Craig, pp. 41-1 41-19. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., 1976.
- Kearsley, Greg. Computer-Based Training: A Guide to Selection and Implementation. Reading, MA: Addison-Wesley Publishing Co., 1983, pp. 1-19, 166-184.
- Kleimann, Glenn M. Brave New Schools: How Computers Can Change Education. Reston, VA: Reston Publishing Co., 1984, [unexamined].
- Kozma, Robert B.; Belle, Lawrence W.; and Williams, George W.

 Instructional Techniques in Higher Education. Englewood Cliffs, NJ:
 Educational Technology Publications, 1978, pp. 321-337.



- Kulik, James A. "Effects of Computer-Based Teaching on Learners." Paper presented at the National Forum of the College Board Symposium on Computer Competency and the Curriculum, Dallas, TX, October 1983. Reprint. Bethesda, MD: ERIC Document Reproduction Service, ED 246 877, 1983, pp. 3-9.
- Megarry, Jacquette. "Thinking, Learning and Educating: The Role of the Computer." In *Computers and Education*, edited by Jacquetta Megarry and others., pp. 15-28. World Yearbook of Education 1982/83. London, England: Kogan Page, 1983; New York, NY: Nichols Publishing Company, 1983.
- O'Neil, Harold F., Jr., editor. Computer-Based Instruction: A State of the Art Assessment. New York, NY: Academic Press, 1981, [unexamined].
- Rushby, Nicholas John. "Computer-Assisted Learning." In *The International Encyclopedia of Education: Research and Studies*, vol. 2, edited by Torsten Husen and T. Neville Postlethwaite, pp. 927-936. Oxford, England: Pergamon Press Ltd., 1985.
- Rushby, Nicholas John. *Computers and the Teaching Process*. New York, NY: John Wiley and Sons, Inc., 1979, pp. 9-36.
- Rushby, Nicholas John. *An Introduction to Educational Computing*. London, England: Croom Helm, 1979, [unexamined].
- Suppes, Patrick. "The Uses of Computers in Education." *Scientific American* 215 (September 1966): 207-220.
- Wittich, Walter A. and Schuller, Charles F. *Instructional Technology: Its Nature and Use*. 5th ed. New York, NY: Harper and Row, Publishers, 1973, pp. 554-579.



Contract Learning

- Berte, Neal R. "The Future of Learning Contracts." In *Individualizing Education through Contract Learning*, edited by Neal R. Berte, pp. 173-186. University, AL: University of Alabama Pres., 1975.
- Berte, Neal R. "The Future of Learning Contracts." In *Individualizing Education by Learning Contracts*, pp. 93-100. New Directions for Higher Education, no. 10. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, Inc., 1975.
- Berte, Neal R. "Individualization and Contract." In *Individualizing Education by Learning Contracts*, pp. 1-7. New Directions for Higher Education, no. 10. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, Inc., 1975.
- Berte, Neal R. "Individualizing Education Through Contracting." In Individualizing Education through Contract Learning, edited by Neal R. Berte, pp. 3-11. University, AL: University of Alabama Press, 1975.
- Christen, William. "Contracting for Student Learning." *Educational Technology* 26 (March 1976): 24-28.
- Clark, Thomas. "Creating Contract Learning." In *On College Teaching: A Guide to Contemporary Practices*, edited by Ohmer Milton and Associates, pp. 212-235. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1978.
- Esbensen, Thorwald. Student Contracts. Instructional Design Library, vol. 17. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1978, pp. 3-8.
- Holley, Charles Elmer. *High School Teachers' Methods*. Champaign, IL: Garrard Press, Publishers, 1937, pp. 314-319.
- Knowles, Malcolm S. Self-Directed Learning: A Guide for Learners and Teachers. New York, NY: Association Press, 1975, pp. 14-22, 129-135.



Kozma, Robert B.; Belle, Lawrence W.; and Williams, George W.

Instructional Techniques in Higher Education. Englewood Cliffs, NJ:
Educational Technology Publications, 1978, pp. 364-371.

Lindquist, Jack. "Strategies for Contract Learning." In *Learner-Centered Reform*, edited by Dyckman W. Vermilye, pp. 75-89. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1975.



Cooperative Education and Service Study

- Collins, Stewart B. "Cooperative Education and Internships College." in Handbook on Contemporary Education, edited by Steven E. Goodman, pp. 585-590. New York, NY and London, England: R. R. Bowker Co., 1976.
- Duley, John S. "Learning Through Field Experience." In *On College Teaching:*A Guide to Contemporary Practices, edited by Ohmer Milton and
 Associates, pp. 314-339. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers,
 1978.
- rleermann, Ban y. Cooperative Education in Community Colleges: A Sourcebook for Occupational and General Educators.

 San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1973, pp. 36-50.
- Johnson, Earl S. "Field Study: An Experience in Getting Meaning." *Educational Leadership* 10 (January 1953): 229-233.
- Law, Gordon F. Cooperative Education: Handbook for Teacher-Coordinators. Chicago, IL: American Technical Society, 1970, (unexamined).
- Quarmby, Andrew. "Study Service: Community Service Used to Educate Those Who Serve." In *Study Service: An Examination of Community Service as a Method of Study in Higher Education*, edited by Sinclair Goodlad, pp. 66-101. Windsor, Berks, England: NFER-Nelson Publishing Co. Ltd., 1982.
- Ritterbush, Philip C. "Campus and Community: An Institutiona"

 Transformation." In Let the Entire Community Become Our University.,
 edited by Philip C. Ritterbush, pp. 9-19. Washington, DC: Acropolis
 Books, Ltd., 1972.
- Tyler, Ralph W. "Values and Objectives." In *Handbook of Cooperative Education*, by Asa S. Knowles and Associates, pp. 18-25.

 San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Inc., Publishers, 1971.



Wagner, Jon. "Field Study as a State of Mind." In *Field Study: A Sourcebook for Experiential Learning*, edited by Lenore Borzak, pp. 18-49. Beverly Hills, CA: Sage Publications, 1981.



Demonstrations

- Bergevin, Paul; Morris, Dwight; and Smith, Robert M. *Adult Education Procedures*. Greenwich, CN: Seabury Press, 1963, pp. 63-73.
- Callahan, Sterling, G. Successful Teaching in Secondary Schools. Chicago, IL: Scott Foresman and Co., 1966, pp. 207-213.
- Colvin, Stephen Sheldon. *An Introduction to High School Teaching*. New York, NY: Macmillan Co., 1929, pp. 244-273.
- Dale, Edgar. Audiovisual Methods in Teaching. 3rd ed. New York, NY: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1969, pp. 271-295.
- Leonard, Joan M.; Fallon, John J.; and von Arx, Harold. *General Methods of Effective Teaching: A Practical Approach*. New York, NY: Thomas Y. Crowell Co., 1972, pp. 80-93.
- Morgan, Barton; Holmes, Glenn E.; and Bundy, Clarence E. *Methods in Adult Education*. Danville, iL: interstate Publishers and Printers, Inc., 1963, pp. 124-133.
- Rogers, Jennifer. *Adults Learning*. 2nd ed. Milton Keynes, England: Open University Press, 1977, pp. 132-139.



Discovery Learning

- Ausubel, David P. "Learning by Discovery." *Educational Leadership* 20 (November 1962): 113-117.
- Ausubel, David P. *The Psychology of Meaningful Verbal Learning: An Introduction to School Learning*. New York, NY: Grune and Stratton, Inc., 1963, pp. 139-175.
- Ausubel, David P.; Novak, Joseph D.; and Hanesian, Helen. *Educational Psychology: A Cognitive View*. 2nd ed. New York, NY: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, Inc., 1978, pp. 519-564.
- Clark, Leonard H. "Inquiry and Discovery Techniques." In *Teaching in the Secondary School: Planning for Competence*, edited by Joseph F. Callahan and Leonard H. Clark, pp. 147-173. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing Co., Inc, 1977; London, England: Collier Macmillan Publishers, 1977.
- Dembo, Myron H. Teaching for Learning: Applying Educational Psychology in the Classroom. Santa Monica, CA: Goodyear Publishing Co., 1977, pp. 278-284.
- Gardiner, W. Lambert. *The Psychology of Teaching*. Monterey, CA: Brooks/Cole Publishing Co., 1980, pp. 241-264.
- Hyman, Ronaid T. Ways of Teaching. 2nd ed. New York, NY: J. B. Lippincott Co., 1974, pp. 119-188.
- Massialas, Byron G. and Zevin, Jack. *Teaching Creatively: Learning Through Discovery*. Malabar, FL: Robert E. Krieger Publishing Co., Inc., 1983, pp. 1-31.
- Nuthall, Graham and Snook, Ivan. "Contemporary Models of Teaching." In Second Handbook of Research on Teaching, edited by Robert M. W. Travers, pp. 59-65. Chicago, IL: Rand McNally and Co., 1973.



- Rogers, Jennifer. *Adults Learning*. 2nd ed. Milton Keynes, England: Open University Press, 1977, pp. 160-171.
- Shuiman, Lee S. and Keisler, Evan R. Learning by Discovery: A Critical Appraisal. Chicago, IL: Rand McNally and Co., 1966, pp. 181-199.
- Snelbecker, Glenn E. Learning Theory, Instructional Theory, and Psychoeducational Design. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., 1974, pp. 410-426, 429-437.
- Tanner, Daniel and Tanner, Laurel N. Curriculum Development: Theory into Practice. 2nd ed. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing Co., Inc., 1980; London, England: Collier Macmillan Publishers, 1980, pp. 403-409.



Discussions

- Barnes-McConnell, Patricia W. "Leading Discussions." In *On College Teaching:*A Guide to Contemporary Practices, edited by Ohmer Milton and
 Associates, pp. 62-100. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers,
 1978.
- Beard, Ruth. *Teaching and Learning in Higher Education*. 3rd ed. Harmondsworth, Middlesex, England: Penguin Books Ltd., 1976, pp. 121-142.
- Bergevin, Paul; Morris, Dwight; and Smith, Robert M. *Adult Education Procedures*. Greenwich, CN: Seabury Press, 1963, pp. 95-106.
- Bligh, Donald and others. *Teaching Students*. Devon, England: Exeter University Teaching Services, [1975], pp. 146-166.
- Bormann, Ernest G. *Discussion and Group Methods: Theory and Practice*. New York, NY: Harper and Row, Publishers, 1969, pp. 1-42.
- Buchler, Justus. "What is a Discussion?" Journal of General Education 8 (October 1954): 7-17.
- Buxton, Claude E. *College Teaching: A Psychologist's View*. New York, NY: Harcourt, Brace and Co., 1956, pp. 171-196.
- Clark, Leonard H. and Starr, Irving S. Secondary School Teaching Techniques.

 3rd ed. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing Co., Inc, 1976; London,
 England: Collier Macmillan Publishers, 1976, pp. 191-217.
- Eble, Kenneth Eugene. *The Craft of Teaching: A Guide to Mastering the Professor's Art*. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1979, pp. 54-65.



- Gall, Meredith D. "Discussion Methods of Teaching." In *The International Encyclopedia of Education: Research and Studies*, vol. 3, edited by Torsten Husen and T. Neville Postlethwaite, pp. 1423-1427. Oxford, England: Pergamon Press Ltd., 1985.
- Gall, Meredith D. and Gall, Joyce P. "The Discussion Method." In *The Psychology of Teaching Methods*, edited by N. L. Gage, pp. 166-216. Seventy-fifth Yearbook of the National Society for the Study of Education, part 1. Chicago, IL: University of Chicago Press, 1976.
- Grambs, Jean D. and Iverson, William J. *Modern Methods in Secondary Education*. New York, NY: William Sloane Associates Publishers, 1952, pp. 166-186.
- Hansen, Kenneth H. *High School Teaching*. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1957, pp. 183-187.
- Heim, Alice. *Teaching and Learning in Higher Education*. Windsor, Berks, England: NFER Publishing Co. Ltd., 1976, pp. 87-92.
- Hill, William Fawcett. Learning Thru Discussion: Guide for Leaders and Members of Discussion: Groups. Beverly Hills, CA and London, England: Sage Publications, 1977, pp. 13-21.
- Hock, Louise E. "Discussion and Small Group Techniques." in *Teaching in the Secondary School: Planning for Competence*, edited by Joseph F. Callahan and Leonard H. Clark, pp. 127-146. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing Co., Inc, 1977; London, England: Collier Macmillan Publishers, 1977.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. College Teaching Today: A Handbook for Postsecondary Instruction. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1980, pp. 120-149.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. Learning and Teaching in the Secondary School. 2nd ed. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1968, pp. 122-176.



- Hoover, Kenneth H. *The Professional Teacher's Handbook: A Guide for Improving Instruction in Today's Middle and Secondary Schools*.

 3rd ed. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1982, pp. 222-263.
- Hyman Ronald T. Ways of Teaching. 2nd ed. New York, NY: J. B. Lippincott Co., 1974, pp. 69-90.
- Kirk, M. "The Seminar." In *University Teaching in Transition*, edited by David Layton, pp. 63-70. Edinburgh, Scotland: Oliver and Boyd Ltd., 1968.
- Kozma, Robert B.; Belle, Lawrence W.; and Williams, George W. *Instructional Techniques in Higher Education*. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1978, pp. 233-246.
- Legge, Derek. "Discussion Methods." In *Teaching Techniques in Adult Education*, edited by Michael D. Stephens and Gordon W. Roderick, pp. 75-89. Newton Abbot, England: David and Charles (Publishers) Ltd., 1971.
- Leonard, Joan M.; Fallon, John J.; and von Arx, Harold. *General Methods of Effective Teaching: A Practical Approach*. New York, NY: Thomas Y. Crowell Co., 1972, pp. 223-234.
- Lowman, Joseph. *Mastering the Techniques of Teaching*. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1984, pp. 119-145.
- McKeachie, Wilbert J. *Teaching Tips: A Guidebook for the Beginning College Teacher*. 7th ed. Lexington, MA and Toronto, Canada: D. C. Heath and Co., 1978, pp. 35-67.
- Morgan, Barton; Holmes, Glenn E.; and Bundy, Clarence E. *Methods in Adult Education*. Danville, IL: Interstate Publishers and Printers, Inc., 1963, pp. 74-85.
- Risk, Thomas M. *Principles and Practices of Teaching in Secondary Schools*. 4th ed. New York, NY: American Book Co., 1968, pp. 261-265.



- Rivlin, Harry N. *Teaching Adolescents in Secondary Schools*. 2nd ed. New York, NY: Appleton-Century-Crofts, Inc., 1961, pp. 178-198.
- Rogers, Jennifer. *Adults Learning*. 2nd ed. Milton Keynes, England: Open University Press, 1977, pp. 203-225.
- Smith, Imogene K. "Teaching With Discussion: A Review." *Educational Technology* 18 (November 1978): 40-43.
- Tyler, I. Keith. "Learning through Discussion." In *The Two Ends of the Log:*Learning and Teaching in Today's College, edited by Russell M. Cooper,
 pp. 254-261. Minneapolis, MN: University of Minnesota Press, 1958.
- Vavoulis, Alexander. "Lecture vs. Discussion." *Improving College and University Teaching* 12 (Summer 1964): 185-189.
- Walton, John. *Toward Better Teaching in the Secondary Schools*. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1966, pp. 155-162.
- Wellington, C. Burleigh and Wellington, Jean. *Teaching for Critical Thinking with Emphasis on Secondary Education*. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., Inc., 1960, pp. 121-139.



Distance Education

- Erdos, Rene'e. *Teaching by Correspondence*. London, England: Longmans, Green and Co. Ltd., 1967, pp. 1-11.
- Holmberg, Boerje. *Distance Education: A Survey and Bibliography*. London, England: Kogan Page, 1977; New York, NY: Nichols Publishing Co., 1977, pp. 9-20, 93-103.
- Holmberg, Boerje. Status and Trends of Distance Education. London, England: Kogan Page, 1981; New York, NY: Nichols Publishing Co., 1981, pp.11-42.
- Kaye, Anthony R. "Distance Education." In *The International Encyclopedia of Education: Research and Studies*, vol. 3, edited by Torsten Husen and T. Neville Postlethwaite, pp. 1432-1438. Oxford, England: Pergamon Press Ltd., 1985.
- Kaye, Anthony R. and Rumble, Greville, eds. *Distance Teaching for Higher and Adult Education*. London, England: Croom Helm, 1981, [unexamined].
- Neil, Michael W., editor. *Education of Adults at a Distance*. London, England: Kogan Page, 1981, [unexamined].
- Noble, Pat. Resource-Based Learning in Post-Compulsory Education. London, England: Kogan Page, 1980; New York, NY: Nichols Publishing Co., 1980, pp. 28-40.
- Rogers, Jennifer. *Adults Learning*. 2nd ed. Milton Keynes, England: Open University Press, 1977, pp. 172-187.
- Salinger, Ruth D. "Correspondence Study." In *Training and Development Handbook: A Guide to Human Resource Development*, 2nd ed., edited by Robert L. Craig, pp. 38-1 38-14. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., 1976.



Drill and Practice

- Burton, William H. *The Guidance of Learning Activities*. 3rd ed. New York, NY: Appleton-Century-Crofts, Inc. 1962, pp. 449-462.
- Burton, William H. *The Nature and Direction of Learning*. New York, NY and London, England: D. Appleton and Co., 1929, pp. 343-367.
- Clark, Leonard H. and Staff, Irving S. Secondary School Teaching Techniques.

 3rd ed. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing Co., Inc., 1976; London,
 England: Collier Macmillan Publishers, 1976, pp. 248-251.
- Colvin, Stephen Sheldon. *An Introduction to High School Teaching*. New York, NY: Macmillan Co., 1929, pp. 177-223.
- Douglass, Harl R. *Modern Methods in High School Teaching*. Boston, MA: Houghton Miff!!n Co., 1926, pp. 241-261.
- Earhart, Lida B. *Types of Teaching*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co, 1915, pp. 150-177.
- Holley, Charles F.Imer. *High School Teachers' Methods*. Champaign, IL: Garrard Press, Publishers, 1937, pp. 236-249.
- Holley, Charles Elmer. *The Teacher's Technique*. New York, NY: Century Co., 1926, pp. 139-159.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. *The Professional Teacher's Handbook: A Guide for Improving Instruction in Today's Middle and Secondary Schools*.

 3rd ed. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1982, pp. 264-288.
- Miller, Harry G. and Swick, Kevin. "Appropriate Uses of Drill Exercises." *Educational Technology* 16 (October 1976): 26-30.
- Mueller, Alfred Don. *Teaching in Secondary Schools*. New York, NY and London, England: Century Co., 1928, pp. 157-178.



- Parker, Samuel Chester. *Methods of Teaching in High Schools*. Rev. ed. Boston, MA: Ginn and Co., 1920, pp. 142-168.
- Pinsent, Arthur. *The Principles of Teaching Method*. 2nd rev. ed. London, England: George G. Harrap and Co. Ltd., 1962, pp. 298-325.
- Reeves, Charles Everand. Standards for High School Teaching: Methods and Technique. New York, NY and London, England: D. Appleton-Century Co., 1932, pp. 139-154, 189-205.
- Risk, Thomas M. *Principles and Practices of Teaching in Secondary Schools*. 3rd ed. New York, NY: American Book Co., 1958, pp. 254-255, 309-311.
- Rivlin, Harry N. *Teaching Adolescents in Secondary Schools*, 2nd ed. New York, NY: Appleton-Century-Crofts, Inc., 1961, pp. 305-311.
- Stormzand, Martin J. *Progressive Methods of Teaching*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1927, pp. 227-251.
- Strebel, Ralph F. and Morehart, Grover C. *The Nature and Meaning of Teaching*. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., Inc., 1929, pp. 205-222.
- Verduin, John R., Jr.; Miller, Harry G.; and Greer, Charles. *Adults Teaching Adults: Principles and Strategies*. Austin, TX: Learning Concepts, 1977, pp. 135-139.
- Walton, John. *Toward Better Teaching in the Secondary Schools* Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1966, pp. 173-176.
- Yoakam, Gerald A. and Simpson, Robert G. *Modern Methods and Techniques of Teaching*. New York, NY: Macmillan Co., 1948, pp. 256-273.



Experiential Methods

- Boydell, Tom. Experiential Learning. Manchester Monographs, 5. [Manchester, England: University of Manchester, Department of Adult Education, 1976].
- Chickering, Arthur W. Experience and Learning: An Introduction to Experiential Learning. N.p.: Change Magazine Press, 1977.
- Coleman, James S. "Differences Between Experiential and Classroom Learning." In *Experiential Learning: Rationale, Characteristics, and Assessment*, edited by Morris T. Keeton and Associates, pp. 49-61. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1976.
- Grambs, Jean D. and Iverson, William J. *Modern Methods in Secondary Education*. New York, NY: William Sloane Associates Publishers, 1952, pp. 148-161.
- Keeton, Morris T. "Credentials for the Learning Society." In Experiential Learning: Rationale, Characteristics, and Assessment, edited by Morris T. Keeton and Associates, pp. 1-18. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1976.
- Kozma, Robert B.; Belle, Lawrence 'N.; and Williams, George W.

 Instructional Techniques in Higher Education. Englewood Cliffs, NJ:
 Educational Technology Publications, 1978 pp. 353-357
- Thiagarajan, Sivasailam. Experiential Learning Packages. Instructional Design Library, vol. 23. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1980, pp. 3-35, 75-83.
- Thut, I. N. and Gerberich, J. Raymond. Foundations of Method for Secondary Schools. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., Inc., 1949, pp. 269-317.



Field Trips

- Bergevin, Paul; Morris, Dwight; and Smith, Robert M. *Adult Education Procedures*. Greenwich, CN: Seabury Press, 1963, pp. 74-83.
- Bossing, Nelson L. *Progressive Methods of Teaching in Secondary Schools*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1942, pp. 403-407.
- Bottrell, Harold R. *Teaching Tools: Find, Arrange, and Use Community Resources for Teaching*. Pittsburgh, PA: Boxwood Press, 1957, pp. 48-67.
- Callahan, Sterling G. Successful Teaching in the Secondary Schools. Chicago, IL: Scott Foresman Co., 1966, pp. 249-253.
- Class, A. J. Foy and Cypher, Irene F. Audio-Visual Education. New York, NY: Thomas Y. Crowell Co., 1961, pp. 219, 226-230.
- Cultice, Wendell W. Field Trips, and How to Make Sure Your School Gets the Most Out of Them. [nglewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1967, pp. 5-7, 13-17.
- Dale, Edgar. Audiovisual Methods in Teaching. 3rd { ^ New York, NY: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, Inc., 1969, pp. 297-321.
- Grambs, Jean D. and Iverson, William J. Modern Methods in Secondary Education. New York, NY: William Sloane Associates Publishers, 1952, pp. 140-143.
- Hansen, Kenneth H. *High School Teaching*. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1957, pp. 311-314.
- Leonard, Joan M.; Fallon, John J.; and von Arx, Harold. *General Methods of Effective Teaching: A Practical Approach*. New York, NY: Thomas Y. Crowell Co., 1972, pp. 250-266.



- Redleaf, Rhoda. Field ?rips -- An Adventure in Learning. St. Paul, MN: Toys and Things Training and Resource Center, 1980, [unexamined].
- Risk, Thomas M. *Principles and Practices of Teaching in Secondary Schools*. 3rd ed. New York, NY: American Book Co., 1958, pp. 376-379.
- Rivlin, Harry N. *Teaching Adolescents in Secondary Schools*. 2nd ed. New York, NY: Appleton-Century-Crofts, Inc., 1961, pp. 246-250.
- Wittich, Walter Arno and Schuller, Charles Francis. *Audiovisual Materials: Their Nature and Use.* 4th ed. New York, NY: Harper and Row, Publishers, 1967, pp. 225-253.



Independent Study

- Alexander, William Marvin and Hines, Vynce A. and Associates.

 Independent Study in Secondary Schools. New York, NY:
 Holt, Rinehart, and Winston, Inc., 1967, pp. 1-17.
- Brown, B. Frank. Education by Appointment: New Approaches to Independent Study. West Nyack, NY: Parker Publishing Co., 1968, pp. 37-54.
- Dressel, Paul Leroy and Thompson, Mary Magdale. *Independent Study*. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1973, pp. 1-11.
- Goldschmid, Barbara and Goldschmid, Marcel L. "Modular Instruction in Higher Education: A Review." *Higher Education* 2 (February 1973): 15-32.
- Gruber, Howard E. "The Future of Self-Directed Study." In *Approach to Independent Study*, compiled by Winslow R. Hatch and Alice L. Richards, pp. 1-10. New Dimensions in Higher Education, no. 13. Washington, DC: Government Printing Office, 1965.
- Klein, M. Francas. "Independent Study." In *Encyclopedia of Educational Research*, vol. 2, 5th ed., edited by Harold E. Mitzel, pp. 835-844. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing Co., Inc., Free Press, 1982; London, England: Collier Macmillan Publishers, 1982.
- Kozma, Robert B.; Belle, Lawrence W.; and Williams, George W.

 Instructional Techniques in Higher Education. Englewood Cliffs, NJ:
 Educational Technology Publications, 1978, pp. 353-357.
- Musgrave, George Ray. Individualized Instruction: Teaching Strategies Focusing on the Learner. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1975, pp. 92-107.



- Noble, Pat. Resource-Based Learning in Post-Compulsory Education. London, England: Kogan Page, 1980; Mew York, NY: Nichols Publishing Co., 1980, pp. 15-27, 126-141.
- Rogge, William M. "Independent Study is Self-Directed Learning." In Independent Study: Bol-1 New Venture, edited by David W. Beggs III and Edward G. Buffie, pp. 9-27. Bloomington, IN: Indiana University Press, 1965.
- Wedemeyer, Charles A. "Independent Study." In *The Encyclopedia of Education*, vol. 4, edited by Lee C. Deighton, pp. 548-557. [New York, NY]: Macmillan Co. and Free Press, 1971.
- Wedemeyer, Charles A. "Independent Study." In *Handbook on Contemporary Education*, edited by Steven E. Goodman, pp. 578-585. New York, NY and London, England: R. R. Bowker Co., 1976.
- Wedemeyer, Charles A. "Independent Study." In *The International Encyclopedia of Higher Education*, vol. 5, edited by Asa S. Knowles, pp. 2114-2132. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1977.



- Noble, Pat. Resource-Based Learning in Post-Compulsory Education. London, England: Kogan Page, 1980; New York, NY: Nichols Publishing Co., 1980, pp. 15-27, 126-141.
- Rogge, William M. "Independent Study is Self-Directed Learning." In *Independent Study: Bold New Venture*, edited by David W. Beggs III and Edward G. Buffie, pp. 9-27. Bloomington, IN: Indiana University Press, 1965.
- Wederneyer, Charles A. "Independent Study." In *The Encyclopedia of Education*, vol. 4, edited by Lee C. Deighton, pp. 548-557. [New York, NY]: Macmillan Co. and Free Press, 1971.
- Wederneyer, Charles A. "Independent Study." In *Handbook on Contemporary Education*, edited by Steven E. Goodman, pp. 578-585. New York, NY and London, England: R. R. Bowker Co., 1976.
- Wederneyer, Charles A. "Independent Study." In *The International Encyclopedia of Higher Education*. vol. 5, edited by Asa S. Knowles, pp. 2114-2132. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1977.



Individualized Instruction

- Anderson, Jack A. and Little, J. Wesley. *Change and Innovation in Education*. New York, NY: MSS Information Corp., 1974, pp. 41-46.
- Goldschmid, Barbara and Goldschmid, Marcel L. "Individualizing Instruction in Higher Education: A Review." *Higher Education* 3 (February 1974): 1-24.
- Hoover, Kenneth E. *The Professional Teacher's Handbook: A Guide for Improving Instruction in Today's Middle and Secondary Schools*.

 3rd ed. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1982, pp. 182-196.
- Keuscher, Robert E. "Why Individualize Instruction?" In *Individualization of Instruction: A Teaching Strategy*, edited by Virgle M. Howes, pp. 6-19. London, England: Macmillan Co., 1970.
- Mueller, Alfred Don. *Teaching in Secondary Schools*. New York, NY and London, England: Century Co., 1928, pp. 317-350.
- Musgrave, George Ray. Individualized Instruction: Teaching Strategies
 Focusing on the Learner. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1975.
- Scriven, Michael. "Problems and Prospects for Individualization." In Systems of Individualized Education, edited by Harriet Talmage, pp. 199-210. Berkeley, CA: McCutchan Publishing Corp., 1975.
- Von Haden, Herbert 1. and King, Jean Marie. Educational Innovator's Guide. Worthington, OH: Charles A. Jones Publishing Co., 1974, pp. 2-15.
- Weisgerber, Robert A. "Individualized Learning." In *Handbook on Contemporary Education*, edited by Steven E. Goodman, pp. 397-402. New York, NY and London, England: R. R. Bowker Co., 1976.
- Weisgerber, Robert A. *Perspectives in Individualizing Learning*. Itasca, IL: F. E. Peacock Publishers, Inc., 1971.



Inquiry Learning

- Clark, Leonard H. "Inquiry and Discovery Techniques." In *Teaching in the Secondary School: Planning for Competence*, edited by Joseph F. Callahan and Leonard H. Clark, pp. 147-173. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing Co., Inc., 1977; London, England: Collier Macmillan Publishers, 1977.
- Hatch, Winslow R. "Inquiry into Inquiry." *Improving College and University Teaching* 5 (Autumn 1957): 93-99.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. *The Professional Teacher's Handbook: A Guide for improving Instruction in Today's Middle and Secondary Schools*.

 3rd ed. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1982, pp. 289-307.
- Joyce, Bruce and Weil, Marsha. *Models of Teaching*. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1972, pp. 62-74, 123-164.
- Merwin, William C. "The Inquiry Method." In *Handbook on Contemporary Education*, edited by Steven E. Goodman, pp. 388-392. New York, NY and London, England: R. R. Bowker Co., 1976.
- Postman, Neil and Weingartner, Charles. *Teaching as a Subversive Activity*. New York, NY: Delacorte Press, 1969, pp. 25-38.
- Ryan, Frank L. and Ellis, Arthur K. *Instructional Implications of Inquiry*. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1974, pp. 1-9, 142-144.
- Sund, Robert B., and Trowbridge, Leslie W. Student-Centered Teaching in the Secondary School. Columbus, OH: Charles E. Merrill Publishing Co., 1974, pp. 39-54, 122-162.
- Von Haden, Herbert I. and King, Jean Marie. Educational Innovator's Guide.
 Worthington, OH: Charles A. Jones Publishing Co., 1974, pp. 378-388.



Laboratory Method

- Alexander, William M. "The Contribution of Research to the Use of Laboratory Techniques." In Laboratory Techniques of Teaching: The Contribution of Research to Teachers Planning the Individualization of Instruction, by the members of Education 335-336M, 1937-1938., pp. 57-69.

 New York, NY: Columbia
- University, Teachers College, Bureau of Publications, 1938.
- Beard, Ruth. *Teaching and Learning in Higher Education*. 3rd ed. Harmondsworth, Middlesex, England: Penguin Books, Ltd., 1976, pp. 143-160.
- Burton, William H. *The Nature and Direction of Learning*. New York, NY and London, England: D. Appleton and Co., 1929, pp. 400-412.
- Henderson, Norman K. *University Teaching*. Hong Kong, China: Hong Kong University Press, 1969, pp. 67-71.
- Leonard, Joan M.; Fallon, John J.; and von Arx, Harold. *General Methods of Effective Teaching: A Practical Approach*. New York, NY: Thomas Y. Crowell Co., 1972, pp. 207-220.
- McKeachie, Wilbert J. *Teaching Tips: A Guidebook for the Beginning College Teacher*. 7th ed. Lexington, MA and Toronto, Canada: D. C. Heath and Co., 1978, pp. 83-85.
- Parker, Samuel Chester. *Methods of Teaching in High Schools*. Rev. ed. Boston, MA: Ginn and Co., 1920, pp. 449-464.
- Reeves, Charles Everand. Standards for High School Teaching: Methods and Technique. New York, NY and London, England: D. Appleton-Century Co., 1932, pp. 257-269.
- Stormzand, Martin J. *Progressive Methods of Teaching*. Boston, NA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1927, pp. 201-217.



Wellington, C. Burleigh and Wellington, Jean. *Teaching for Critical Thinking with Emphasis on Secondary Education*. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., Inc., 1960, pp. 161-183.



Learning Centers

- Beach, Don M. Reaching Teenagers: Learning Centers for the Secondary Classroom. Santa Monica, CA: Goodyear Publishing Co., Inc., 1977, pp. 1-5.
- Bennie, Frances. Learning Centers: Development and Operation. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1977, pp. 1-43.
- Flaum, Laurence S. *The Activity High School: The Priniciples of Its Operation*. New York, NY: Harper and Brothers Publishers, 1953, pp. 34-84.
- Kasambira, K. Paul. "Individualizing Instruction through Learning Centers."

 Paper presented at the Annual Meeting of the Association of Teacher Educators, New Orleans, LA, January 28 February 1, 1984. Reprint. Bethesda, MD: ERIC Document Reproduction Service, ED 249 188, 1984, pp. 3-10.
- Petreshene, Susan S. Complete Guide to Learning Centers. Palo Alto, CA: Pendragon House, 1978, pp. 1-7.
- Rossman, Mark H. "Learning Centers." In *Materials and Methods in Continuing Education*, edited by Chester Klevins, pp. 290-298. Los Angeles, CA: Klevens Publications Inc., 1978.
- Salser, Mark R. Individualized Learning Center Management: A User's Guide. Portland, OR: Educational Research Associates, 1983. Reprint. Bethesda, MD: ERIC Document Reproduction Service, ED 242 026, 1983, pp. 5-11, 34-49.
- Von Haden, Herbert I. and King, Jean Marie. Educational Innovator's Guide. Worthington, OH: Char' 3 A. Jones Publishing Co., 1974, pp. 16-29.



Lectures

- Ausubel, David P. "In Defense of Verbal Learning." *Educational Theory* 11 (January 1961): 15-25.
- Bane, Charles L. *The Lecture in College Teaching*. Boston, MA: Richard G. Badger, Publisher, 1981.
- Beard, Ruth. *Teaching and Learning in Higher Education*. 3rd ed. Harmondsworth, Middlesex, England: Penguin Books Ltd., 1976, pp. 100-120.
- Bligh, Donald and others. *Teaching Students*. Devon, England: Exeter University Teaching Services, [1975], pp. 101-108.
- Bligh, Donald. What's the Use of Lectures?. Exeter, Devon, England: D. A. and B. Bligh, 1971, pp. 1-26, 156-179.
- Bossing, Nelson L. *Progressive Methods of Teaching in Secondary Schools*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1942, pp. 437-467.
- Broadwell, Martin M. *The Lecture Method of Instruction*. Instructional Design Library, vol. 27. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1980, pp. 3-23, 65-69.
- Brown, George. "Lectures." In *The International Encyclopedia of Education:*Research and Studies, vol. 5, edited by Torsten Husen and T. Neville
 Postlethwaite, pp. 2987-2991. Oxford, England: Pergamon Press Ltd.,
 1985.
- Brown, George. Lecturing and Explaining. London, England and New York, NY: Methuen, 1978, pp. 41-61.
- Buxton, Claude E. *College Teaching: A Psychologist's View*. New York, NY: Harcourt, Brace and Co., 1956, pp. 139-148.



- Callahan, Sterling G. Successful Teaching in the Secondary Schools. Chicago, IL: Scott Foresman and Co., 1966, pp. 192-199.
- Cockburn, Barbara. Why Lecture?. Teaching in Higher Education Series: 2.

 Suggestions for the Consideration of Lecturers and Others Concerned with Teaching in Higher Education. Lancaster, England: Lancaster University, School of Education, 1980. Reprint. Bethesda, MD: ERIC Document Reproduction Service, ED 230 099, 1980, pp. 8-66.
- Cowen, John. "The Responsive Lecture: A Means of Supplementing Resource-Based Instruction." *Educational Technology* 24 (December 1984): 18-21.
- Eble, Kenneth Eugene. *The Craft of Teaching: A Guide to Mastering the Professor's Art*. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1979, pp. 42-53.
- Glicksberg, Charles I. "Is Lecturing Teaching?" Improving College and University Teaching 6 (Winter 1958): 26-29.
- Goetting, Martin Luther. *Teaching in the Secondary School*. New York, NY: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1942, pp. 166-172.
- Hansen, Kenneth H. *High School Teaching*. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1957, pp. 180-183.
- Hatch, Winslow R. *Approach to Teaching*. New Dimensions in Higher Education, no. 14. Washington, DC: Government Printing Office, 1966, pp. 11-16.
- Heim, Alice. *Teaching and Learning in Higher Education*. Windsor, Berks, England: NFER Publishing Co. Ltd., 1976, pp. 13-38.
- Henderson, Norman K. *University Teaching*. Hong Kong, China: Hong Kong University Press, 1969, pp. 11-25.
- Highet, Gilbert. *The Art of Teaching*. New York, NY: Alfred A. Knopf, Inc., 1950, pp. 100-121.



- Holley, Charles Elmer. *High School Teachers' Methods*. Champaign, IL: Garrard Press, Publishers, 1937, pp. 222-235.
- Holley, Charles Elmer. *The Teacher's Technique*. New York, NY: Century Co., 1926, pp. 101-113.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. College Teaching Today: A Handbook for Postsecondary Instruction. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1980, pp. 174-196.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. *Learning and Teaching in the Secondary School*. 2nd ed. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, inc., 1968, pp. 350-360.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. *The Professional Teacher's Handbook: A Guide for Improving Instruction in Today's Middle and Secondary Schools*. 3rd ed. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1982, pp. 323-347.
- Hyman, Ronald T. *Ways of Teaching*. 2nd ed. New York, NY: J. B. Lippincott Co., 1974, pp. 189-198, 208-230.
- Kozma, Robert B.; Belle, Lawrence W.; and Williams, George W.

 Instructional Techniques in Higher Education. Englewood Cliffs, NJ:
 Educational Technology Publications, 1978, pp. 145-160.
- Laing, A. "The Art of Lecturing." In *University Teaching in Transition*, edited by David Layton, pp. 18-34. Edinburgh, Scotland: Oliver and Boyd Ltd., 1968.
- Legge, Derek. "The Use of Talk in Adult Classes." In *Teaching Techniques in Adult Education*, edited by Michael D. Stephens and Gordon W. Roderick, pp. 53-64. Newton Abbot, England: David and Charles (Publishers) Ltd., 1971.
- Loud, Oliver S. "Lecture and Discussion in General Education." *Journal of General Education* 8 (October 1954): 30-33.
- Lowman, Joseph. *Mastering the Techniques of Teaching*. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1984, pp. 96-118.



- McKeachie, Wilbert J. *Teaching Tips: A Guidebook for the Beginning College Teacher*. 7th ed. Lexington, MA and Toronto, Canada: D. C. Heath and Co., 1978, pp. 22-34.
- McLeish, John. *The Lecture Method*. Cambridge Monographs on Teaching Methods, no. 1. Cambridge, England: Cambridge Institute of Education, 1968, pp. 1-3, 47-48.
- McLeish, John. "The Lecture Method." In *The Psychology of Teaching Methods*, edited by N. L. Gage, pp. 252-301. Seventy-fifth Yearbook of the National Society for the Study of Education, part 1. Chicago, IL: University of Chicago Press, 1976.
- Mueller, Alfred Don. *Teaching in Secondary Schools*. New York, NY and London, England: Century Co., 1928, pp. 134-156.
- Penner, Jon G. Why Many College Teachers Cannot Lecture: How to Avoid Communication Breakdown in the Classroom. Springfield, IL: Charles C. Thomas Publisher, 1984, pp. 65-97.
- Powell, Len. *Lecturing*. London, England: Sir Isaac Pitman and Sons Ltd., 1973, pp. 1-12.
- Reeves, Charles Everand. Standards for High School Teaching: Methods and Technique. New York, NY and London, England: D. Appleton-Century Co., 1932, pp. 206-215.
- Risk, Thomas M. *Principles and Practices of Teaching in the Secondary Schools*. 4th ed. New York: American Book Co., 1968, pp. 280-285.
- Rogers, Jennifer. *Adults Learning*. 2nd ed. Milton Keynes, England: Open University Press, 1977, pp. 132-139.
- Satterfield, John. "Lecturing." in *On College Teaching: A Guide to Contemporary Practices*, edited by Ohmer Milton and Associates, pp. 34-61. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1978.



- Sidgwick, Henry. "A Lecture Against Lecturing." In *Miscellaneus Essays and Addresses*. London, England: Macmillan and Co., Ltd, 1904; New York, NY: Macmillan Co., 1904. Reprint New York, NY: Kraus Reprint Co., 1968, pp. 340-351.
- Sweeney, John J. and Reigeluth, Charles M. "The Lecture and Instructional Design: A Contradiction in Terms?" *Educational Technology* 24 (August 1984): 7-12.
- Vavoulis, Alexander. "Lecture vs. Discussion." Improving College and University Teaching 12 (Summer 1964): 185-189.
- Verner, Coolie and Dickenson, Gary. "The Lecture, An Analysis and Review of Research." Adult Education 17 (Winter 1967): 85-100.
- Walton, John. *Toward Better Teaching in the Secondary Schools*. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1966, pp. 144-152.
- Wellington, C. Burleigh and Wellington, Jean. *Teaching for Critical Thinking with Emphasis on Secondary Education*. New York, MY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., Inc., 1960, pp. 219-236.



Personalized System of Instruction

- Born, David 6. and Zlutnick, Steven. "Personalized Instruction." *Educational Technology* 12 (September 1972): 30-34
- Cross, K. Patricia. Accent on Learning: Improving Instruction and Reshaping the Curriculum. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1976, pp. 90-110.
- Green, Ben A. "The Personalized System of Instruction, or Should University Teaching Be Improved?" *Programmed Learning and Educational Technology* 13 (February 1976): 9-12, [unexamined].
- Keller, Fred S. and Koen, Billy V., eds. *The Personalized System of Instruction: State of the Art 1976*. A Report to the Alfred P. Sloan Foundation. Prepared by Engineering Institutes of the University of Texas at Austin, 1976.
- Keller, Fred S. and Sherman, J. Gilmour. *The Keller Plan Handbook*.

 Menlo Park, CA: W.A. Benjamin, Inc., 1974, pp. 14-23, 50-58, 73-91.
- Keller, Fred S. and Sherman, J. Gilmour. *The PSI Handbook: Essays on Personalized Instruction*. Lawrence, KN: TRI Publications, 1982.
- Kozma, Robert B.; Bell, Lawrence W.; and Williams, George W.

 Instructional Techniques in Higher Education. Englewood Cliffs, NJ:
 Educational Technology Publications, 1978, pp. 273-290.
- Kulik, J. A. "Keller Plan: A Personalized System of Instruction." In *The International Encyclopedia of Education: Research and Studies*, vol. 5, edited by Torsten Husen and T. Nevill^a Postlewaite, pp. 2798-2803. Oxford, England: Pergamon Press Ltd., 1985.
- McKeachie, Wilbert J. *Teaching Tips: A Guidebook for the Beginning College Teacher*. 7th ed. Lexington, MA and Toronto, Canada: D. C. Heath and Co., 1978, pp. 112-117.



- Ruskin, Robert S. *The Personalized System of Instruction: An Educational Alternative*. ERIC/Higher Education Research Report No. 5.

 Washington, DC: ERIC Clearinghouse for Higher Education, 1974.

 Reprint. Bethesda, MD: ERIC Document Reproduction Service, ED 093 256, 1974.
- Schiller, William J and Markle, Susan M. "Using the Personalized System of Instruction." In *On College Teaching: A Guide to Contemporary Practices*, edited by Ohmer Milton and Associates, pp. 153-183. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1978.
- Sherman, J. Gilman; Ruskin, Robert S.; and Semb, George B. *The Personalized System of Instruction: 48 Seminal Papers*. Lawrence, KN: TRI Publications, 1982.



Problem Method

- Bossing, Nelson L. *Progressive Methods of Teaching in Secondary Schools*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1942, pp. 521-554.
- Colvin, Stephen Sheldon. An Introduction to High School Teaching. New York, NY: Macmillan Co., 1929, pp. 295-309.
- Douglass, Harl R. *Modern Methods in High School Teaching*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1926, pp. 295-322.
- Earthart, Lida B. *Types of Teaching*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1915, pp. 38-69.
- Goetting, Martin Luther. *Teaching in the Secondary School*. New York, NY: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1942, pp. 178-182.
- Hansen, Kenneth H. *High School Teaching*. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1957, pp. 190-195.
- Holley, Charles Elmer. *High School Teachers' Methods*. Champaign, IL: Garrard Press, Publishers, 1937, pp. 200-221.
- Holley, Charles Elmer. *The Teacher's Technique*. New York, NY: Century Co., 1926, pp. 115-138.
- Mueller, Alfred Don. *Teaching in Secondary Schools*. New York, NY and London, England: Century Co., 1928, pp. 242-269.
- Parker, Samuel Chester. *Methods of Teaching in High Schools*. Rev. ed. Boston, MA: Ginn and Co., 1920, pp. 169-231, 436-448.
- Reeves, Charles Everano. Standards for High School Teaching: Methods and Technique. New York, NY and London, England: D. Appleton-Century Co., 1932, pp. 155-166.



- Risk, Thomas M. *Principles and Practices of Teaching in Secondary Schools*. 3rd ed. New York, NY: American Book Co., 1958, pp. 289-299.
- Stormzand, Martin J. *Progressive Methods of Teaching*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1927, pp. 70-87, 164-174.
- Umstattd, James Greenleaf. Secondary School Teaching. 3rd ed. Boston, MA: 6inn and Co., 1953, pp. 154-158.



Programmed Instruction

- Bligh, Donald and others. *Teaching Students*. Devon, England: Exeter University Teaching Services, [1975], pp. 109-114.
- Brethower, Karen Searles. "Programmed Instruction." In *Training and Development Handbook: A Guide to Human Resource Development*, 2nd ed., edited by Robert L. Craig, pp. 39-1 39-23. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., 1976.
- Bugelski, Bergen Richard. *Psychology of Learning Applied to Teaching*. Indianapolis, IN: Bobbs-Merrill Co., Inc., 1964, pp. 207-233.
- Bullock, Donald H. *Programmed Instruction*. Instructional Design Library, vol. 14. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1978, pp. 3-20, 53-59.
- Bunderson, C. Victor and Faust, Gerald W. "Programmed and Computer-Assisted Instruction." In *The Psychology of Teaching Methods*, edited by N. L. Gage, pp. 44-46, 54-65. Seventy-fifth Yearbook of the National Society for the thirdy of Education, part 1. Chicago, IL: University of Chicago Press, 1976.
- Callahan, Sterling F. Successful Teaching in the Secondary Schools. Chicago, IL: Scott Foresman and Co., 1966, pp. 426-456.
- Cook, Donald and Mechner, Francis. "Fundamentals of Programed Instruction." In *Applied Programed Instruction*, by Stuart Margu s and Lewis D. Eigen, pp. 2-14. New York, NY: John Wiley and Sons, Inc., 1962.
- Cross, K. Patricia. Accent on Learning: Improving Instruction and Reshaping the Curriculum. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1976, pp. 55-60.
- Dale, Edgar. Audiovisual Methods in Teaching. 3rd ed. New York, NY: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, Inc., 1969, op. 624-659.



- Dembo, Myron H. *Teaching for Learning: Applying Educational Psychology in the Classroom*. Santa Monica, CA: Goodyear Publishing Co.,1977, pp. 234-239.
- Deterline, William A. An Introduction to Programmed Instruction. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1962, pp. 1-7, 23-26, 67-78.
- Epstein, Sam and Epstein, Beryl. *The First Book of Teaching Machines*. New York, NY: Franklin Watts, Inc., 1961.
- Eraut, M. "Programmed Learning." In *The International Encyclopedia of Education: Research and Studies*, vol. 7, edited by Torsten Husen and T. Neville Postlethwaite, pp. 4096-4105. Oxford, England: Pergamon Press Ltd., 1985.
- Green, Edward J. *The Learning Process and Programmed Instruction*. New York, NY: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, Inc., 1962, pp. 111-138, 193-214.
- Hartley, James R. "Programmed Learning." In *University Teaching in Transition*, edited by David Layton, pp. 103-116. Edinburgh, Scotland: Oliver and Boyd Ltd., 1968.
- Hartley, James R. and Davies, Ivor K. "Programmed Learning and Educational Technology." In *Adult Learning: Psychological Research and Applications*, edited by Michael J. A. Howe, pp. 161-182. London, England: John Wiley and Sons, Ltd., 1977.
- Henderson, Norman K. *University Teaching*. Hong Kong, China: Hong Kong University Press, 1969, pp. 124-135.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. Learning and Teaching in the Secondary School. 2nd ed. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1968, pp. 447-472.
- Kozma, Robert B.; Bell, Lawrence W.; and Williams, George W.

 Instructional Techniques in Higher Education. Englewood Cliffs, NJ:

 Educational Technology Publications, 1978, pp. 305-320.



- Leytham, Geoffrey. "The Principles of Programmed Learning." In *Teaching Techniques in Adult Education*, edited by Michael D. Stephens and Gordon W. Roderick, pp. 139-152. Newton and Abbot, England: David and Charles (Publishers) Ltd., 1971.
- Lysaught, Jerome P. and Williams, Clarence M. A Guide to Programmed Instruction. New York, NY and London, England: John Wiley and Sons, Inc., 1963, pp. 1-26, 148-166.
- McKeachie, Wilbert J. *Teaching Tips: A Guidebook for the Beginning College Teacher*. 7th ed. Lexington, MA and Toronto, Canada: D. C. Heath and Co., 1978, pp. 104-109.
- Maclaine, A. G. "A Critical Evaluation of Programmed Instruction." Australian Psychologist 4 (November 1969): 93-103.
- Markle, Susan Meyer. "Programm'd Instruction." In *The Encyclopedia of Education*, vol. 7, edited by Lee C. Deighton, pp. 241-249. [New York, NY]: Macmillan Co. and Free Press, 1971.
- Risk, Thomas M. *Principles and Practices of Teaching in Secondary Schools*. 4th ed. New York, NY: American Book Co., 1968, pp. 412-427.
- Rivlin, Harry N. *Teaching Adolescents in Secondary Schools*. 2nd ed. New York, NY: Appleton-Century-Crofts, Inc., 1961, pp. 253-257.
- Saucier, Weems A.; Wendel, Robert L.; and Mueller, Richard J. *Toward Humanistic Teaching in High School*. Lexington, MA: D. C. Heath and Co., 1975, pp. 253-263.
- Schramm, Wilbur: Programed Instruction: Today and Tomorrow.

 N.p.: Fund for the Advancement of Education, 1962.
- Schramm, Wilbur. The Research on Programed Instruction: An Annotated Bibliography. Washington, DC: Government Printing Office, 1964, pp. 1-15.



- Scriven, Michael. "The Case for and Use of Programmed Texts." In Programmed Instruction: Bold New Venture, edited by Allen D. Calvin, pp. 3-36. Bloomington, IN and London, England: Indiana University Press, 1969.
- Smith, Karl U. and Smith, Margaret Foltz. *Cybernetic Principles of Learning and Educational Design*. New York, NY: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, Inc., 1966, pp. 245-274, 299-328.
- Travers, Robert M. W. Essentials of Learning: An Overview for Students of Education. New York, NY: Macmillan Co., 1963, pp. 473-500.
- Von Haden, Herbert I. and King, Jean Marie. *Educational Innovator's Guide*. Worthington, OH: Charles A. Jones Publishing Co., 1974, pp. 43-54.
- Wittich, Walter Arno and Schuller, Charles Francis. *Audiovisual Materials: Their Nature and Use.* 4th ed. New York, NY: Harper and Row, Publishers, 1967, pp. 511-525.



Projects and Reports

- Bode, Boyd H. *Modern Educational Theories*. New York, NY: Macmillan Co., 1927, pp. 141-167.
- Bossing, Nelson L. *Progressive Methods of Teaching in Secondary Schools*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1942, pp. 555-595.
- Branom, M. E. *The Project Method in Education*. Boston, MA: R. G. Badger, 1919, [unexamined].
- Broudy, Harry S. and Palmer, John R. Exemplars of Teaching Method. Chicago, IL: Rand McNally and Co., 1965, pp. 142-156.
- Burton, William H. *The Nature and Direction of Learning*. New York, NY and London, England: D. Appleton and Co., 1929, pp. 254-278.
- Cowen, G. *Project Work in the Secondary School*. London, England: Longmans, Greens and Co. Ltd., 1967, pp. 1-9.
- "Dangers and Difficulties of the Project Method and How to Overcome Them:

 A Symposium." *Teachers College Record* 22 (September 1921):
 283-321.
- Douglass, Harl R. *Modern Methods in High School Teaching*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1926, pp. 323-356.
- Goetting, Martin Luther. *Teaching in the Secondary School*. New York, NY: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1942, pp. 186-190.
- Heim, Alice. Teaching and Learning in Higher Education. Windsor, Berks, England: NFER Publishing Co. Ltd, 1976, pp. 71-77.
- Henderson, Norman K. *University Teaching*. Hong Kong, China: Hong Kong University Press, 1969, pp. 85-87.



- Hewton, E. "Project Work in Higher Education." In *The International Encyclopedia of Education: Research and Studies*, vol. 7, edited by Torsten Husen and T. Neville Postlethwaite, pp. 4110-4117. Oxford, England: Pergamon Press Ltd., 1985.
- Holley, Charles Elmer. *High School Teachers' Methods*. Champaign, IL: Garrard Press, Publishers, 1937, pp. 334-346.
- Hosic, James F. and Chase, Sara E. Brief Guide to the Project Method.
 Chicago, IL and New York, NY: World Book Co., 1924, pp. 1-24, 85-96.
- Ginn and Co., 1924, pp. 3-54, 237-245.
- Kilpatrick, William H. "The Project Method." *Teachers College Record* 19 (September 1919): 318-335.
- Kilpatrick, William H. *The Project Method: The Use of the Purposeful Act in the Educative Process*. New York, NY: Columbia University Teachers College, 1918.
- Lowman, Joseph. *Mastering the Techniques of Teaching*. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1984, pp. 170-180.
- McMurray, Charles A. *Teaching By Projects: A Basis for Purposeful Study*. New York, Nr.: Macmillan Co., 1921, pp. v, 1-17.
- Macomber, Freemon 6. "Panels and Reports in College Teaching."

 In T.e Two Ends of the Lor Learning and Teaching in Today's

 College, edited by Russe... M. Cooper, pp. 233-237. Minneapolis, MN:

 University of Minnesota Press, 1958.
- Mueller, Alfred Don. *Teaching in Secondary Schools*. New York, NY and London, England: Century Co., 1928, pp. 291-316.
- Reeves, Charles Everand. Standards for High School Teaching: Methods and Technique. New York, NY and London, England: D. Appleton-Century Co., 1932, pp. 243-256.



- Risk, Thomas M. *Principles and Practices of Teaching in Secondary Schools*.

 3rd ed. New York, NY: American Book Co., 1958, pp. 299-304.
- Rogers, Jennifer. *Adults Learning*. 2nd ed. Milton Keynes, England: Open University Press, 1977, pp. 188-202.
- Society for Research into Higher Education, Working Party on Teaching Methods, Techniques Group. Project Methods in Higher Education. Guildford, Surrey, England: Society for Research into Higher Education Ltd., 1975, pp. 1-25, 69-77.
- Stevenson, John Alford. *The Project Method of Teaching*. New York, NY: Macmillan Co., 1921, pp. 1-21, 40-69, 116-136.
- Stockton, James Leroy. *Project Work in Education*. Boston, MA and New York, NY: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1920, [unexamined].
- Stormzand, Martin J. *Progressive Methods in Education*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1927, pp. 140-164.
- Tanner, Daniel and Tanner, Laurel N. Curriculum Development: Theory into Practice. 2nd ed. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing Co., Inc., 1980; London, England: Collier Macmillan Publishers, 1960, pp. 302-308.
- Thayer, Vivian Trow. *The Passing of the Recitation*. Boston, MA: D. C. Heath and Co., 1928, pp. 229-275.
- Thomas, Frank W. *Principles and Techniques of Teaching: An Introduction to the Study of the Teaching Art*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1927, pp. 309–331.
- Umstattd, James Greenleaf. Secondary School Teaching. 3rd ed. Boston, MA: Ginn and Co., 1953, pp. 159-163.



Questioning

- Bossing, Nelson L. *Progressive Methods of Teaching in Secondary Schools*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1942, pp. 329-361.
- Callahan, Sterling F. Successful Teaching in the Secondary Schools. Chicago, IL: Scott Foresman and Co., 1966, pp. 199-207.
- Carin Arthur A. and Sund, Robert B. *Developing Questioning Techniques*:

 **A Self-Cancept Approach. Columbus, OH: Charles E. Merrill
 Publishing Co., 1977, pp. 23-37.
- Clark, Leona, J. H. and Starr, Irving S. Secondary School Teaching Techniques.

 3rd ed. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing Co., Inc., 1976; London,
 England: Collier Macmillan Publishers, 1976, pp. 218-224.
- Clegg, Ambrose A., Jr. "Classroom Questions." in *The Encyclopedia of Educatia*, vol. 2, edited by Lee C. Deighton, pp. 183-190. [New York, NY]: Macmillan Co. and Free Press, 1971.
- Douglass, Harl R. *Modern Methods in High School Teaching* Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1926, pp. 31-48.
- Hansen, Kenneth H. *High School Teaching*. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1957, pp. 187-190.
- Holley, Charles Elmer. *High School Teachers' Methods*. Champaign, IL: Garrard Press, Publishers, 1937, pp. 111-122.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. College Teaching Today: A Handbook for Postsecondary Instruction. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1980, pp. 101-119.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. *The Professional Teacher's Handbook: A Guide for Improving Instruction in Today's Middle and Secondary Schools*.

 3rd ed. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1982, pp. 201-221.



- Hunkins, Frances P. *Involving Students in Questioning*. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1976, pp. 1-19, 221-228.
- Hunkins, Frances P. *Questioning Strategies and Techniques*. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1972, pp. 1-11, 33-61, 78-105.
- Hyman, Ronald T. *Strategic Questioning*. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1979, pp. 1-5, 141-167.
- Hyman, Ronald T. Ways of Teaching. 2nd ed. New York, NY: J. B. Lippincott Co., 1974, pp. 289-332.
- Leonard, Joan M.; Fallon, John J.; and von Arx, Harold. *General Methods of Effective Teaching: A Practical Approach*. New York, NY: Thomas Y. Crowell Co., 1972, pp. 67-79.
- Mueller, Alfred Don. *Teaching in Secondary Schools*. New York, NY and London, England: Century Co., 1928, pp. 117-133.
- Reeves, Charles Everand. Standards for High School Teaching: Methods and Technique. New York, NY and London, England: D. Appleton-Century Co., 1932, pp. 216-229.
- Risk, Thomas M. *Principles and Practices of Teaching in Secondary Schools*. 4th ed. New York, NY: American Book Co., 1968, pp. 265-273.
- Rivlin, Harry N. *Teaching Adolescents in Secondary Schools*. 2nd ed. New York, NY: Appleton-Century-Crofts, Inc., 1961, pp. 203-223.
- Sund, Robert B. and Carin, Arthur. Creative Questioning and Sensitive Listening Techniques: A Self-Concept Approach. 2nd ed. Columbus, OH: Charles E. Merrill Publishing Co., 1978.
- Yoakam, Gerald A. and Sinipson, Robert G. *Modern Methods and Techniques of Teaching*. New York, NY: Macmillan Co., 1948, pp. 186-199.



Recitation

- Betts, George Herbert. *The Recitation*. Boston, MA: Houghton !1ifflin Co., 1910, [unexamined].
- Bossing, Nelson L. *Progressive Methods of Teaching in Secondary Schools*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1942, pp. 468-520.
- Burton, William H. *The Guidance of Learning Activities*. 3rd ed. New York, NY: Appleton-Century-Crofts, Inc., 1962, pp. 316-321.
- Douglass, Harl R. *Modern Methods in High School Teaching*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1926, pp. 241-261.
- Earhart, Lida B. *Types of Teaching*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1915. pp. 93-138.
- Goetting, Martin Luther. *Teaching in the Secondary School*. New York, NY: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1942, pp. 159-165.
- Highet, Gilbert. The Art of Teaching. New York, NY: Alfred A. Knopf, Inc., 1950, pp. 131-140.
- Holley, Charles Elmer. *High School Teachers' Methods*. Champaign, IL: Garrard Press, Publishers, 1937, pp. 322-333.
- Hyman, Ronald T. Ways of Teaching. 2nd ed. New York, NY: J. B. Lippincott Co., 1974, pp. 189-207.
- McMurry, Charles A. and McMurry, Frank M. *The Method of the Recitation*. Sloomington, IL: Public-School Publishing Co., 1898, pp. 7-17, 305-319.
- 1' seller, Alfred Doil. *Teaching in Secondary Schools*. New York, NY and London, England: Century Co., 1928, pp. 270-290.



- Reeves, Charles Everand. Standards for High School Teaching: Methods and Technique. New York, NY and London, England: D. Appleton-Century Co., 1932, pp. 230-242.
- Robbins, Charles L. *The Socialized Recitation*. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, 1920, pp. 1-28.
- Stormzand, Martin J. *Progressive Methods of Teaching*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1927, pp. 268-288.
- Strebel, Ralph F. and Morehart, Grover C. *The Nature and Meaning of Teaching*. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., Inc., 1929, pp. 155-175.
- Thayer, Vivian Trow. *The Passing of the Recitation*. Boston, MA: D. C. Heath and Co., 1928, pp. 1-28, 217-228.
- Thomas, Fræk W. Principles and Techniques of Teaching: An Introduction to the Study of the Teaching Art. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1927, pp. 264-286.
- Thut, I. N. and Gerberich, J. Raymond. Foundations of Method for Secondary Schools. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., Inc., 1949, pp. 150-159.
- Whitney, William T. *The Socialized Recitation*. New York, NY: A. S. Barnes Co., 1915, [u.examined].



Reinforcement

- Bates, J. A. "Reinforcement in the Classroom." In *The International Encyclopedia of Education: Research and Studies*, vol. 7, edited by Torsten Husen and T. Neville Postlethwaite, pp. 4256-4266. Oxford, England: Pergamon Press Ltd., 1985.
- Birnbrauer, J. S. "Contingency Management Techniques in Education." In Handbook on Contemporary Education, edited by Steven E. Goodman, pp. 440-448. New York, NY and London, England: R. R. Bowker Co., 1976.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. College Teaching Today: A Handbook For Postsecondary Instruction. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1980, pp. 55-64.
- Joyce, Bruce and Weil, Marsha. *Models of Teaching*. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1972, pp. 271-294.
- Miller, John P. *The Educational Spectrum: Or, entations to Curriculum*. New York, NY and London, England: Lc. gman, Inc., 1983, pp. 9-32.
- Nuthall, Graham and Snook, Ivan. "Contemporary Models of Teaching." In Second Handbook of Research of Teaching edited by Robert M. W. Travers, pp. 54-59. Chicago, IL: Rand McNaily and Co., 1973.
- Patterson, Cecil Holden. Foundations for a Theory of Instruction and Educational Psychology. New York, NY: Harper and Row, Publishers, 1977, pp. 186-279.
- Skinner, B. F. *Reflections on Behaviorism and Society*. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Preintice-Hall, Inc., 1978, pp. 129-139, 149-159.
- Skinner, B. F. "The Science of Learning and the Art of Teaching." Harvard Educational Review 24 (Spring 1954): 86-97.



- Skinner, B. F. "The Science of Learning and the Art of Teaching." In *Individualized Instruction and Learning*, compiled and edited by Madan Mohan and Ronald E. Hull, pp. 51-66. Chicago, IL: Nelson-Hall Co., 1974.
- Skinner, B. F. "Some Implications of Making Education More Efficient." In *Behavior Modification in Education*, edited by Carl E. Thoresen, pp. 446-456. Seventy-second Yearbook of the National Society for the Study of Education, part 1. Chicago, IL: University of Chicago Press, 1973.
- Skinner, B. F. *The Technology of Teaching*. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1968.
- Snelbecker, Glenn E. Learning Theory, Instructional Theory, and Psychoeducational Design. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., 1974, pp. 389-408.
- Weil, Marsha L. and Murphy, Joseph. "Instruction Processes." In Encyclopedia of Educational Research, vol. 2, 5th ed., edited by Harold E. Mitzel, pp. 901-909. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing Co., Inc., Free Press, 1982; London, England: Collier Macmillan Publishers, 1982.



Resource Persons

- Bergevin, Paul; Morris, Dwight; and Smith, Robert M. Adult Education Procedures. Greenwich, CN: Seabury Press, 1963, pp. 42-55, 83-94, 106-127.
- Bottrell, Harold R. *Teaching Tools: Find, Arrange, and Use Community Pesources for Teaching*. Pittsburgh, PA: Boxwood Press, 1957, pp. 67-85.
- Callahan, Sterling G. Successful Teaching in the Secondary Schools. Chicago, IL: Scott Foresman and Co., 1966, pp. 266-272.
- Grambs, Jean D. and Iverson, William J. *Modern Methods in Secondary Education*. New York, NY: William Sloane Associates Publishers, 1952, pp. 143-149.
- Hansen, Kenneth H. *High School Teaching*. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1957, pp. 308-311.
- Holley, Charles Elmer. *High School Teachers' Methods*. Champaign, IL: Garrard Press, Publishers, 1937, pp. 347-361.
- McClure, Larry; Cook, Sue Carol; and Thompson, Virginia. Experience-Based Learning: How to Make the Community Your Classroom. Portland, OR: Northwest Regional Educational Laboratory, 1977, 141-166.



Reviewing and Summarizing

- Bossing, Nelson L. *Progressive Methods of Teaching in Secondary Schools*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1942, pp. 311-328.
- Douglass, Harl R. *Modern Methods in Yigh School Teaching*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1926, pp. 61-66.
- Earhart, Lida B. *Types of Teaching*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1915, pp. 178-191.
- Holley, Charles Elmer. *High School Teachers' Methods*. Champaign, IL: Garrard Press, Publishers, 1937, pp. 271-278.
- Holley, Charles Elmer. *The Teacher's Technique*. New York, NY: Century Co., 1926 pp. 182-192.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. College Teaching Today: A Handbook for Postsecondary Instruction. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1980, pp. 150-173.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. *The Professional Teacher's Handbook: A Guide for Improving Instruction in Today's Middle and Secondary Schools*.

 3rd ed. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1982, pp. 264-288.
- Leonard, Joan M.; Fallon, John J.; and von Arx, Harold. *General Methods of Effective Teaching: A Practical Approach*. New York, NY: Thomas Y. Crowell Co., 1972, pp. 147-156, 236-243.
- Risk, Thomas M. *Principles and Practices of Teaching in Secondary Schools*. 4th ed. New York, NY: American Book Co., 1968, pp. 290-293.
- Stormzand, Martin J. *Progressive Methods of Teaching*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1927, pp. 218-2≥0.



Strebel, Ralph F. and Morehart, Grover, C. *The Nature and Meaning of Teaching*. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., Inc., 1929, pp. 223-233.

Yoakam, Gerald A. and Simpson, Robert G. Modern Methods and Techniques of Teaching. New York, NY: Macmillan Co., 1948, pp. 274-285.



Role Playing

- Bergevin, Paul; Morris, Dwight; and Smith, Robert M. Adult Education Procedures. Greenwich, CN: Seabury Press, 1963, pp. 135-146.
- Buxton, Claude E. *College Teaching: A Psychologist's View*. New York, NY: Harcourt, Brace and Co., 1956, pp. 212-222.
- Chesler, Ma. and Fox, Robert. Role-Playing Methods in the Classroom. Chicago, IL: Science Research Associates, Inc., 1966, pp. 5-23.
- Clark, Leonard H. and Starr, Irving S. Secondary School Teaching Techniques.

 3rd ed. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing Co., Inc., 1976; London,
 England: Collier Macmillan Publishers, 1976, pp. 235-241.
- Dale, Edgar. *Audiovisual Methods in Teaching*. 3rd ed. New York, NY: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, Inc., 1969, pp. 246-267.
- Grambs, Jean D. and Iverson, William J. *Modern Methods in Secondary*. *Education*. New York, NY: William Sloane Associates Publishers, 1952, pp. 187-196.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. Learning and Teaching in the Secondary School. 2nd ed. Bostor., MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1968, pp. 177-210.
- Hyman, Ronald T. *Ways of Teaching*. 2nd ed. New York, NY: J. B. Lippincott Co., 1974, pp. 233-253, 271-288.
- Klein, Alan F. How to Use Role Playing Effectively. New York, NY: Association Press, 1959, pp. 9-19, 54-61.
- Kozma, Robert B.; Bell, Lawrence W.; and Williams, George W.

 Instructional Techniques in Higher Education. Englewood Cliffs, NJ:

 Educational Technology Publications, 1978, pp. 247-256.



- Lamb, Howard E. "Role-Playing in the Classroom." In *The Encyclopedia of Education*, vol. 7, edited by Lee C. Deighton, pp. 560-565. [New York, NY]: Macmillan Co. and Free Press, 1971.
- McKeachie, Wilbert J. *Teaching Tips: A Guidebook for the Beginning College Teacher*. 7th ed. Lexington, MA and Toronto, Canada: D. C. Heath and Co., 1978, pp. 136-141.
- Milroy, Ellice. *Role-Play: A Practical Guide*. Aberdeen, England: Aberdeen University Press, 1982, pp. 2-44.
- Morgan, Barton; Holmes, Glenn E.; and Bundy, Clarence E. *Methods in Adult Education*. Danville, IL: Interstate Publishers and Printers, Inc., 1963, pp. 112 118.
- Rogers, Jennifer. *Adults Learning*. 2nd ed. Milton Keynes, England: Open University Press, 1977, pp. 140-1. /.
- Shaftel, Fannie R. and Shaftel, George. Role Playing in the Curriculum.

 2nd ed. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1982, pp. 1-16.
- Sharan, Shlomo and Sharan, Yael. *Small-Group Teaching*. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1976, pp. 159-186.
- Thelen, Herbert A. "Role-Playing in the Classroom." In *The Two Ends of the Log: Learning and Teaching in Today's College*, edited by Russell M. Cooper, pp. 242-253. Minneapolis, MN: University of Minnesota Press, 1958.
- Van Ments, Morry. The Effective Use of Role Play: A Handbook for Teachers and Trainers. London, England: Kogan Page Ltd., 1983, pp. 9-37.
- Walter, Gordon A. and Marks, Steven E. Experiential Learning and Change: Theory, Design and Practice. New York, NY: John Wiley and Sons, Inc., 1981, pp. 193-196.



- Weil, Marsha and Joyce, Bruce. Social Models of Teaching: Expanding Your Teaching Repertoire. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice Hall, 1978, pp. 3 J-108.
- Wohlking, Wallace. "Role Playing." In *Training and Development Handbook:*A Guide to Human Resource Development, 2nd ed., edited by Robert L.

 Craig, pp. 36-1 36-14. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., 1976.
- Wohlking, Wallace and Gill, Patricia J. *Role-Playing*. Instructional Design Library, vol. 32. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1980, pp. 3-20, 51-16.



Simulations and Sames

- Adams, Dennis M. Simulation Games: An Approach to Learning. Belmont, CA: Wadsworth Publishing Co., Inc., 1973, pp. 4-28.
- Grown, James W.; Lewis, Richard B.; and Harcleroad, Fred F. AV Instruction: Technology, Media, and Methods. 6th ed. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., 1983, pp. 314-331.
- Butler, J. Thomas. *Games and Simulations in the Community College Classroom*, 1983. Reprint. Bethesda, MD: ERIC Document Reproduction Service, ED 251 161, 1983. [unexamined].
- Carlson, Elliot. 'arning Through Games: A New Approach to Problem Solving. Washington, DC: Public Affairs Press, 1969, pp. 167-174.
- Coleman, James S. "The Role of Modern Technology in Relation to Simulation and Games for Learning." In *To Improve Learning: An Evaluation of Instructional Technology*, vol. 1, part 1, edited by Sidney 6. Tickton, pp. 183-196. New York, NY and London, England: R. R. Bowker Co., 1970.
- Coppard, Larry C. "Gaming Simulation and the Training Process." In *Training and Development Handbook: A Guide to Human Resource Development*, 2nd ed., edited by Robert L. Craig, pp. 40-1 40-14. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., 1976.
- Goodman, Frederick L. "Gaming and Simulation." In *Second Handbook of Research on Teaching*, edited by Robert M. W. Ti avers, pp. 926-939. Chicago, IL: Rand McNally and Co., 1973.
- Goodman, Frederick L. "An Introduction to the Virtues of Gaming." In Educational Aspects of Simulation, edited by P. J. Tansey, pp. 26-37. London, England: McGraw-Hill Publishing Co., 1971.



- Greenblat, Cathy S. "Gaming-Simulation for Teaching and Training: An Overview." In *Gaming-Simulation: Rationale, Design, and Applications*, by Cathy S. Greenblat and Richard D. Duke, pp. 180-195. New York, NY: Sage Publications, 1 ... 1975.
- Greenblat, Cathy S. "Gaming-Simulation for Teaching and Training: An Overview." In *Principles and Practices of Gaming-Simulation*, by Cathy S. Greenblat and Richard D. Duke, pp. 109-123.

 Beverly Hills, CA and London, England: Sage Publications, Inc., 1981.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. College Teaching Today: A Handbook for Postsecondary Instruction. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1980, pp. 224-251.
- Hyman, Ronald T. Ways of Teaching. 2nd ed. Philadelphia, PA: J. B. Lippincott Co., 1974, pp. 254-270.
- Kozma, Robert B.; Belle, Lawrence W.; and Williams, George W.

 Instructional Techniques in Higher Education. Englewood Cliffs, NJ:
 Educational Technology Publications, 1978, pp. 257-269.
- Megarry, Jacquette. "Simulation and Gaming in Education." In *The International Encyclopedia of Education: Research and Studies*, vol. 8, edited by Torsten Husen and T. Neville Postlethwaite, pp. 4575-4602. Oxford, England: Pergamon Press Ltd., 1985.
- Robinson, James A. "Simulation and Games." In *The New Media and Education: Their Impact on Society*, edited by Peter H. Rossi and Bruce J. Biddle, pp. 85-123. Chicago, IL: Aldine Publishing Co., 1966.
- Rockler, Michael J. "Applying Simulation/Gaming." In *On College Teaching:*A Guide to Contemporary Practices, edited by Ohmer Milton and
 Associates, pp. 286-313. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers,
 1978.
- Rogers, Jennifer. *Adults Learning*. 2nd ed. Milton Keynes, England: Open University Press, 1977, pp. 140-159.



- Seidner, Constance J. "Teaching with Simulations and Games." In Learning with Simulations and Games, edited by Richard L. Duke and Constance J. Seidner, pp. 11-45. Beverly Hills, CA and London, England: Sage Publications, 1978.
- Seidner, Constance J. "Teaching with Simulations and Games." In *The Psychology of Teaching Methods*, edited by N. L. Gage, pp. 217-251. Seventy-fifth Yearbook of the National Society for the Study of Education, part 1. Chicago, IL: University of Chicago Press, 1976.
- Sharan, Shlomo and Sharan, Yael. *Small-Group Teaching*. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1976, pp. 187-215.
- Tansey, P. J. and Unwin, Derick. *Simulation and Gaming in Education*. London, England: Methuen Educational Ltd., 1969, pp. 19-34.
- Taylor, John L. and Walford, Rex. *Learning and the Simulation Game*. Beverly Hills, CA: Sage Publications, Inc., 1978, pp. 3-8, 28-40, 57-59.
- Thiagarajan, Sivasailam and Stolovitch, Harold D. *Instructional Simulation Games*. Instructional Design Library, vol. 12. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1978, pp. 3-26, 59-65.
- Twelker, Paul A. and Layden, Kent. "Simulation ac.d Gaming for Learning."
 In Handbook on Contemporary Education, edited by Steven E. Goodman,
 pp. 392-397. New York, NY and London, England: R. R. Bowker Co., 1976.
- Von Haden, Herbert I. and King, Jean Marie. Educational Innovator's Guide.
 Worthington, OH: Charles A. Jones Publishing Co., 1974, pp. 411-420.
- Walter, Gordon A. and Marks, Steven E. Experiential Learning and Change: Theory, Design and Practice. New York, NY: John Wiley and Sons, Inc., 1981, pp. 178-132.
- Wittich, Walter A. and Schuller, Charles F. /nstructional Technology: /ts Nature and Use. 5th ed. New York, NY: Harper and Rew, Publishers, 1973, pp. 579-589.



Small Croup Instruction

- Abercrombie, M. L. J. Aims and Techniques of Group Teaching. 4th ed. Research into Higher Education Monograph 12. Guildford, Surrey, England: University of Surrey, Society for Research into Higher Education, 1979, pp. 1-8.
- Buxton, Claude E. *College Teaching: A Psychologist's View*. New York, NY: Harcourt, Brace and Co., 1956, pp. 197-212.
- Callahan, Sterling G. Successful Teaching in the Secondary Schools. Chicago, IL: Scott Foresman Co., 1966, pp. 234-240.
- Clark, Leonard H. and Starr, Irving S. Secondary School Teaching Techniques.

 3rd ed. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing Co., Inc., 1976; London,
 England: Collier Macmillan Publishers, 1976, pp. 191-217.
- Cockburn, Barbara and Ross, Alec. A Kind of Learning. Teaching in Higher Education Series: 5. Suggestions for Consideration of Lecturers and Others Concerned with Teaching in Higher Education. Lancaster, England: Lancaster University, School of Education, 1980. Reprint. Bethesda, MD: ERIC Document Reproduction Service, ED 230 102, 1980, pp. 7-36.
- Glatthorn, Allan A. "Small-Group Instruction." In *The Encyclopedia of Education*, vol. 8, edited by Lee C. Deighton, pp. 225-238. [New York, NY]: Macmillan Co. and Free Press, 1971.
- Grambs, Jean D. and Iverson, William J. *Modern Methods in Secondary Education*. New York, NY: William Sloane Associates Publishers, 1952, pp. 203-219.
- Henderson, Norman K. *University Teaching*. Hong Kong, China: Hong Kong University Press, 1969, pp. 39-62.



- Hock, Louise E. "Discussion and Small Group Techniques." In *Teaching in the Secondary School: Planning for Competence*, edited by Joseph F. Callahan and Leonard H. Clark, pp. 127-146. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing Co., Inc., 1977; London, England: Collier Macmillan Publishers, 1977.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. College Teaching Today: A Handbook for Postsecondary Instruction. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1980, pp. 65-98.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. Learning and Teaching in the Secondary School. 2nd ed. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1968, pp. 379-401.
- Heover, Kenneth H. *The Professional Teacher's Handbook: A Guide for Improving Instruction in Today's Middle and Secondary Schools.*3rd ed. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1982, pp. 140-181.
- Jaques, David. *Learning in Groups*. London, England: Croom Helm Ltd., 1984, pp. 61-133.
- McLeish, John; Matheson, Wayne; and Park, James. *The Psychology of the Learning Group*. London, England: Hutchinson University Library, 1973, pp. 88-110, 169-182.
- Mouton, Jane Srygley and Blake, Robert R. Synergozy: A New Strategy for Education, Training, and Development. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1964, pp. 1-21.
- Olmstead, Joseph A. *Small-Group Instruction Theory and Practice*.

 Alexandria, VA: Human Resources Research Organization, 1974, pp. 79-107.
- Olmstead, Joseph A. "Small Group Methods of Instruction." In *Handbook on Contemporary Education*, edited by Steven E. Goodman, pp. 367-370. New York, NY and London, England: R. R. Bowker Co., 1976.
- Sharan, Shlomo and Sharan, Yael. *Small-Group Teaching*. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1976, pp. 3-19.



- Slavin, Robert E. *Cooperative Learning*. New York NY: Longman Inc., 1983, pp. 1-65.
- Slavin, Robert E. "Small-group Instruction." In *The International Encyclopedia of Education: Research and Studies*, vol. 8, edited by Torsten Husen and T. Neville Postlethwaite, pp. 4596-4602. Oxford, England: Pergamon Press Ltd., 1985.
- Slavin, Robert E. Student Team Learning: An Overview and Practical Guide. Washington, DC: National Education Association, 1983, [unexamined].
- Wales, Charles E. *The Guided Design Approach*. Instructional Design Library, vol. 9. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1978, pp. 3-9, 57-65.
- Wellington, C. Burleigh and Wellington, Jean. *Teaching for Critical Thinking with Emphasis on Secondary Education*. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., Inc., 1960, pp. 202-218.



Socratic Method

- Barclay, Charles Edward. *The Socratic Method of Educational Simulation*. Albuquerque, NM: American Classical College Press, [1983], [unexamined].
- Beck, Frederick A. G. *Greek Education: 450 350 B. C.* London, England: Methuen and Co. Ltd., 1964, pp. 188-198.
- Broudy, Harry S. and Palmer, John R. *Exemplars of Teaching Method*. Chicago, IL: Rand McNally and Co., 1965, pp. 31-46.
- Hyman, Ronald T. Ways of Teaching. 2nd ed. New York, NY: J. B. Lippincott Co., 1974, pp. 91-118.
- Jordan, James A. "Socratic Teaching?" *Harvard Educational Review* 33 (Winter 1963): 96-104.
- McMurry, Charles A. and McMurry, Frank M. *The Method of the Recitation*. Bloomington, IL: Public-School Publishing Co., 1898, pp. 221-232.



Task Analysis

- Carlisle, Kenneth E. "The Process of Task Analysis: Integrating Training's Multiple Methods." *Journal of Instructional Development* 6 (1983): 31-35.
- Dembo, Myron H. Teaching for Learning: Applying Educational Psychology in the Classroom. Santa Monica, CA: Goodyear Publishing Co., 1977, pp. 242-248.
- Gagne, Robert M. *The Conditions of Learning*. 3rd ed. New York, NY-Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1977, pp. 263-275.
- Gagne, Robert M. and Briggs, Leslie J. *Principles of Instructional Design*.

 2nd ed. New York, NY: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1979, pp. 97-116.
- Resnick, Lauren B. "Task Analysis in Instructional Design." In Cognition and Instruction, edited by David Klahr, pp. 51-80. Hillsdale, NJ: Lawrence Erlbaum Associates, Publishers, 1976.
- Snelbecker, Glenn E. Learning Theory, Instructional Theory, and Psychoeducational Design. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., 1974. pp. 454-478.
- Tiemann, P. W. and Markle, S. M. "Instructional Design: Task Analysis." In The International Encyclopedia of Education: Research and Studies, vol. 6, edited by Torsten Husen and T. Neville Postlethwaite, pp. 2563-2569. Oxford, England: Pergamon Press Ltd., 1985.
- Warner, John C.; Wigglesworth, David C.; and Nowak, Frank E. "Task Analysis." In *Materials and Methods in Continuing Education*, edited by Chester Klevins, pp. 156-162. Los Angeles, CA: Klevens Publications, Inc., 1978.



Team Teaching

- Anderson, Jack A. and Little, J. Wesley. *Change and Innovation in Education*. New York, NY: MSS Information Corp., 1974, pp. 7-15.
- Bair, Medill and Woodward, Richard G. *Team Teaching in Action*. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1964, pp. 3-35.
- Callahan, Sterling G. Successful Teaching in the Secondary Schools.
 Chicago, IL: Scott Foresman and Co., 1966, pp. 472-483.
- Casey, Virginia M. "A Summary of Team Teaching Its Patterns and Potentials." In *Team Teaching: Bold New Venture*, edited by David W. Beggs III, pp. 164-178. Indianapolis, IN: Unified College Press, Inc., 1964.
- Chamberlin, Leslie J. *Team Teaching: Organization and Administration*. Columbus, OH: Charles E. Merrill Publishing Co., 1969, pp. 1-23.
- Davis, Harold S. "Team Teaching." In *The Encyclopedia of Education*, vol. 9, edited by Lee C. Deighton, pp. 89-94. [New York, NY]: Macmillan Co. and Free Press, 1971.
- Hanslovsky, Glenda; Moyer, Sue; and Wagner, Helen. Why Team Teaching? Columbus, OH: Charles E. Merrill Publishing Co., 1969, pp. 83-90.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. Learning and Teaching in the Secondary School. 2nd ed. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1960, pp. 328-349.
- Johnson, Robert H. and Hunt, John H. *RX for Team Teaching*. Minneapolis, MN: Burgess Publishing Co., 1968, pp. 1-32.
- LaFauci, Horatio M. and Richter, Peyton E. *Team Teaching at the College Level*. New York NY: Pergamon Press, 1970, pp. 113-136.



- Polos, Nicholas C. *The Dynamics of Team Teaching*. Dubuque, IA: W. C. Brown Co., [1965], [unexamined].
- Saucier, Weems A.; Wendel, Robert L.; and Mueller, Richard J. *Toward Humanistic Teaching in High School*. Lexington, MA: D. C. Heath and Co., 1975, pp. 264-271.
- Shaplin, Judson T. "Description and Definition of Team Teaching."
 In *Team Teaching*, edited by Judson T. Shaplin and Henry F. Olds, pp. 1-23. New York, NY: Harper and Row, Publishers, 1964.
- Shaplin, Judson T. "Toward a Theoretical Rationale for Team Teaching." In *Team Teaching*, edited by Judson T. Shaplin and Henry F. Olds, pp. 57-98. New York, NY: Harper and Row, Publishers, 1964.
- Sterns, Harvey N. "Team Teaching: Cooperative Organizational Concept."

 In Handbook on Contemporary Education, edited by Steven E. Goodman, pp. 374-379. New York, NY and London, England: R. R. Bowker Co., 1976.
- Von Haden, Herbert I and King, Jean Marie. *Educational Innovator's Guide*. Worthington, OH: Charles A. Jones Publishing Co., 1974, pp. 447-457.
- Warwick, David. *Team Teaching*. London, England: University of London Press, Ltd., 1971, pp. 9-32.



Television and Film

- Allen, William H. "Films, Instructional." In *The Encyclopedia of Education*, vol. 4, edited by Lee C. Deighton, pp. 9-13 [New York, NY]:

 Macmillan Co. and Free Press, 1971.
- Amatuzzi, Joseph Ralph. *Television and the School*. Saratoga, CA: R and E Publishers, 1983, [unexamined].
- Asheim, Lester. "A Survey of Informed Opinion on Television's Future Place in Education." In *Educational Television: The Next Ten Years*, pp. 16-39. Washington, DC: Government Printing Office, 1965.
- Beatty, La Mond F. *Motion Pictures*. Instructional Media Library, vol. 8. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1981, [unexamined].
- Berkman, Dave. "Instructional Television: The Medium Whose Future Has Passed." In *Instructional Television: Status and Directions*, edited by Jerrold Ackerman and Lawrence Lipsitz, pp. 95-108. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1977.
- Blakely, Robert J. *The Use of Instructional Television in Adult Education:*A Review of Some Recent Developments. [Syracuse, NY]: Syracuse
 University, Publications in Continuing Education, 1974, [unexamined].
- Bligh, Donald and others. *Teaching Students*. Devon, England: Exeter University Teaching Services, [1975], pp. 137-143.
- Brish, William M. "Television as a Resource for Instruction." *Educational Forum* 24 (January 1960): 141-145.
- Brown, James W.; Lewis, Richard B.; and Harcleroad, Fred F. AV Instruction: Technology, Media, and Methods. 6th ed. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Co., 1983, pp. 232-289.



- Callahan, Sterling G. Successful Teaching in the Secondary Schools. Chicago, IL: Scott Foresman and Co., 1966, pp. 457-471
- Carpenter, C. R. "Teaching and Learning by Television." In *The Two Ends of the Log: Learning and Teaching in Today's College*, edited by Russell M. Cooper, pp. 209-221. Minneapolis, MN: University of Minnesota Press, 1958.
- Costillo, Lawrence F. and Gordon, George N. *Teach With Television: A Guide to Instructional TV*. 2nd ed. New York, NY: Hastings House Publishers, 1965, pp. 11-40.
- Dale, Edgar. Audiovisual Methods in Teaching. 3rd ed. New York, NY: Holt, Rinehart, and Winston, Inc., 1969, pp. 349-428.
- Erickson, Carlton W. H. and Curl, David H. Fundamentals of Teaching with Audiovisual Technology. 2nd ed. New York, NY: Macmillan Co., 1972; London, England: Collier-Macmillan Ltd., 1972, pp. 117-140.
- Flory, John. "Films for Learning: Some Observations on the Present, Past, and Future Role of the Educational Motion Picture." In *To Improve Learning.*An Evaluation of Instructional Technology, vol. 1, part 2, edited by Sidney G. Tickton, pp. 211-229. New York, NY and London, England: R. R. Bowker Co., 1970.
- Gordon, George N. *Educational Television*. New York, NY: Center for Applied Research in Education, Inc., 1965, pp. 65-96.
- Hammond, M. F. "Film Use in the Classroom." In *The International Encyclopedia of Education: Research and Studies*, vol. 4, edited by Torsten Husen and T. Neville Postlethwaite, pp. 1868-1871. Oxford, England: Pergamon Press Ltd., 1985.
- Hilliard, Robert L. *Television and Adult Education*. Cambridge, MA: Schenkman Publishing Co., 1985, [unexamined].



- Hilliard, Robert L. and Field, Hyman H. *Television and the Teacher:*A rlandbook for Classroom Use. New York, NY: Hastings House,
 Publishers, Inc., 1976, pp. 9-21.
- Holroyde, Derek J. G. "The Use of Television in University Teaching." In *University Teaching in Transition*, edited by David Layton, pp. 117-122. Edinburgh, Scotland: Oliver and Boyd Ltd., 1968.
- Hoover, Kenneth H. *The Professional Teacher's Handbook: A Guide for Improving Instruction in Today's Middle and Secondary Schools*.

 3rd ed. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1982, pp. 308-322.
- Hutton, Dean W. "Video Technology in Higher Education: State of the Art?." In Video in Higher Education, edited by Ortrun Zuber-Skerritt, pp. 11-25. London, England: Kogan Page Ltd., 1984; New York, NY: Nichols Publishing Co., 1984.
- Ide, T. R. "The Potentials and Limitations of Television as an Educational Medium." In *Media and Symbols: The Forms of Expression, Communication, and Education*, edited by David R. Olson, pp. 330-356. Seventy-third Yearbook of the National Society for the Study of Education, part 1. Chicago, IL: University of Chicago Press, 1974.
- Kaplan, Don. Video in the Classroom: A Guide to Creative Television.
 White Plains, NY: Knowledge Industry Publications, 1980,
 [unexamined].
- Kozma, Robert B.; Belle, Lawrence W.; and Williams, George W.

 Instructional Techniques in Higher Education. Englewood Cliffs, NJ:
 Educational Technology Publications, 1978, pp. 175-206.
- Leifer, Aim'ee Dorr. "Teaching With Television and Film." In *The Psychology of Teaching Methods*, edited by N. L. Gage, pp. 302-334. Seventy-fifth Yearbook of the National Society for the Study of Education, part 1. Chicago, IL: University of Chicago Press, 1976.



- McClusky, F. Dean. "The Nature of the Educational Film." In Film and Education: A Symposium on the Role of the Film in the Field of Education, edited by Godfrey M. Elliott, pp. 21-37. New York, NY: Philosophical Library, 1948.
- Maioney, Martin J. "A Philosophy of Educational Television." In *The Farther Vision: Educational Television Today*, edited by Allen E. Koenig and Ruane B. Hill, pp. 11-31. Madison, Wi: University of Wisconsin Press, 1967.
- Mitchell, Wanda B. "Television in the Secondary School." In *Instructional Television: Bold New Venture*, edited by Richard C. Burke, pp. 23-37.

 Bloomington, IN and London, England: Indiana University Press, 1971.
- Moss, Robin. Video, The Educational Challenge. London, England and Canberra, Australia: Croom Helm, 1983, pp. 19-34.
- Murray, Michael. *The Videotape Book*. New York, NY: Bantam Books, Inc., 1974, pp. 183-196.
- Rivlin, Harry N. *Teaching Adolescents in Secondary Schools*. 2nd ed. New York, NY: Appleton-Century-Crofts, Inc., 1961, pp. 239-245.
- Rockman, S. and Burke, R. "Television: Classroom Use." In *The International Encyclopedia of Education: Research and Studies*, vol. 9, edited by Torsten Husen and T. Neville Postlethwaite, pp. 5174-5182. Oxford, England: Pergamon Press Ltd., 1985.
- Siepman, Charles A. TV and Our School Crisis. New York, NY: Dodd, Mead and Co., 1958.
- Smith, Hayden R. and Hagel, Thomas S. *Instructional Media in the Learning Process*. Columbus, OH: Charles E. Merrill Publishing Co., 1972, pp. 61-64.
- Thornton, James W. Jr. and Brown, James W. eds. *New Media and College Teaching*. Washington, DC: National Education Association, § 968, pp. 21-48.



- Winslow, Ken. "Television, Instructional." In *The Encyclopedia of Education*, vol. 9, edited by Lee C. Deighton, pp. 128-134. [New York, NY]: Macmillan Co. and Free Press, 1971.
- Wittich, Walter A. and Schuller, Charles F. *Instructional Technology: Its Nature and Use*. 5th ed. New York, NY: Harper and Row, Publishers, 1973, pp. 447-550.
- Worth, Sol. "The Uses of Film in Education and Communication." In Me "a and Symbols: The Forms of Expression, Communication, and Education, edited by David R. Olson, pp. 271-302. Seventy-third Yearbook of the National Society for the Study of Education, part 1. Chicago, IL: University of Chicago Press, 1974.



Tutoring

- Allen, Vernon L., editor. *Children as Teachers: Theory and Research on Tutoring.* New York, NY: Academic Press, 1976, [unexamined].
- Arkin, Marian and Sholear, Barbara. *The Tutur Book*. New York, NY: Longman, Inc., 1982, pp. 1-8.
- Caldin, E. F. "The Tutorial." In *University Teaching in Transition*, edited by David Layton, pp. 58-62. Edinburgh, Scotland: Oliver and Boyd Ltd., 1968.
- Ellson, Douglas G. "Tutoring." In *The Psychology of Teaching Methods*, edited by N. L. Gage, pp. 130-165. Seventy-fifth Yearbook of the National Society for the Study of Education, part 1. Chicago, IL: University of Chicago Press, 1976.
- Endsley, William R. *Peer Tutorial Instruction*. Instructional Design Library, vol. 28. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1980, pp. 3-24.
- Gattner, Alan; Kohler, Mary Conway; and Riessman, Frank. *Children Teach Children: Learning by Teaching*. New York, NY: Harper and Row, Publishers, 1971, pp. 1-13, 53-72.
- Goldschmid, Barbara and Goldschmid, Marcel L. "Peer Teaching in Higher Education: A Review." Higher Education 5 (February 1976): 9-33.
- Goodlad, Sinclair. Learning by Teaching: An Introduction to Tutoring. London, England: Community Service Volunteers, 1979, [unexamined].
- Heim, Alice. *Teaching and Learning in Higher Education*. Windsor, Berks, England: NFER Publishing Co. Ltd., 1976, pp. 50-57.
- Highet, Gilbert. *The Art of Teaching*. New York, NY: Alfred A. Knopf, Inc., 1950, pp. 121-131.



- Hoover, Kenneth E. *The Professional Teacher's Handbook: A Guide for improving Instruction in Today's Middle and Secondary Schools*.

 3rd ed. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1982, pp. 580-593.
- Moore, Will G. *The Tutorial System and Its Future*. Oxford, England: Pergamon Press Ltd., 1968.
- Von Harrison, Grant and Guymon, Ronald Edward. Structured Tutoring. Instructional Design Library, vol. 34. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1980, pp. 3-39.



Videodiscs

- Clark, D. Joseph. "How Do Interactive Videodiscs Rate Against Other Media?."

 Instructional Innovator 29 (September-October 1984): 12-16.
- Gindele, John F. and Gindele, Joseph G. "Interactive Videodisc Technology and Its Implications for Education." *T.H.E. Journal* 12 (August 1984): 93-97.
- Grabowski, Bark ra and Aggen, William. "Computers for Interactive Learning." *Instructional Innovator* 29 (February 1984): 27-30.
- Grove, Michael. "The Interactive Video-disc in Education and Training."
 In International Yearbook of Educational and Instructional Technology 1984/85, edited by C. W. Osborne and A. J. Trott, pp. 104-110. London, England: Kogan Page, 1984; New York, NY: Nichols Publishing Co., 1984.
- Kearsle; 3reg P. "Instructional Videodisc." Journal of the American Society for Information Science 34 (November 1983): 417-423, [unexamined].
- Kearsley, Greg P. "Videodiscs in Education and Training: The Idea Becomes a Reality." Videodisc/Videotex 1 (Fall 1981): 208-220.
- Kearsley, Greg P. and Frost, Jana. "Design Factors for Successful Videodisc-Based Instruction." *Educational Technology* 25 (March 1985): 7-13.
- Levin, Will. "Interactive Video: The State-of-the-," ** Teaching Machine." Computing Teacher 11 (September 1983): 11-17.
- Manning, D. Thompson and others. "Interactive Videodiscs: A Review from the Field." *Viewpoints in Teaching and Learning* 59 (Spring 1983): 28-40, [unexamined].



- Merrill, Paul F. "Education and Training Applications of Video Disc Technology." In *Video Discs: The Technology, The Applications and the Future*, by Efrem Sigel, Mark Schubin, and Paul F. Merrill, pp. 69-101. White Plains, NY: Knowledge Industry Publications, Inc., 1980.
- Pribble, Ralph. "Enter the Videodisc." *Training: The Magazine of Human Resource Development* 22 (March 1985): 91-99.
- Schneider, Edward W. "Videodiscs, or the Individualization of Instructional Television." In *Instructional Television: Status and Directions*, edited by Jerrold Ackerman and Lawrence Lipsitz, pp. 133-145. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1977.
- Schneider, Edward W. and Bennion, Junius L. *Videodiscs*. Instructional Media Library, vol. 16. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications, 1981, pp. 24-44, 76-84.
- Smith, T. Michael and Andrews, Kenneth G. "Computer-Assisted Video Instruction: Promises and Pitfalls." *Computers in the Schools* 2 (Spring 1985): 65-74.
- Thorkildsen, Ron and Friedman, Susan. "Videodisks in the Classroom." T.H.E. Journal 11 (April 1984): 90-95.



INDEX

Action Mazes see Simulations and Games

Advance Organizers

see also Books and Readings see also Discovery Learning see also Inquiry Learning see also Lectures see also Problem Method see also Task Analysis

Application Methods

see Assignments
see Case Studies
see Contract Learning
see Cooperative Education and Service Study
see Drill and Practice
see Experiential Methods
see Independent Study
see Individualized Instruction
see Laboratory Method
see Projects and Reports
see Simulations and Games

Apprenticeships

see Contract Learning see Cooperative Education and Service Study see Experiential Education



Assignments

see also Books and Readings

see also Drill and Practice

see also Experiential Methods

see also Independent Study

see also Learning Resource Centers

see also Problem Method

see also Projects and Reports

see also Recitation

Audio-Tutorial Method

see also Audiovisual Aids

see also Competency-Based Instruction

see also Independent Study

see also individualized instruction

see also Laboratory Method

see also Learning Centers

see also Lectures

see also Programmed Instruction

see also Tutoring

Audiovisual Aids

see also Audio-Tutorial Method

see also Computer-Assisted Instruction

see also Demonstrations

see also Field Trips

see also Laboratory Method

see also Lectures

see also Television and Film

see also Videodiscs

Autoinstructional Aids

see Audio-Tutorial Method

see Audiovisual Aids

see Computer-Assisted Instruction

see Independent Study

see Learning Centers



Autoinstructional Aids (cont.)
see Personalized System of Instruction
see Programmed Instruction

Behavior Modification see Reinforcement

Behavioral Objectives

see Advance Organizers
see Computer-Assisted Instruction
see Personalized System of Instruction
see Programmed Instruction
see Task Analysis

Behaviorist Models

see Competency-Based Instruction see Personalized System of Instruction see Programmed Instruction see Reinforcement see Task Analysis

Bibliography Writing

see Assignments see Books and Readings see Projects and Reports

Book Review Writing see Assignments see Books and Readings

see Projects and Reports

Books and Readings

see also Advance Organizers see also Assignments see also Learning Centers see also Recitation



Brainstorming

see Discussion
see Questioning
see Small Group Instruction

Brains Trust

see Lectures see Questioning see Resource Persons

Buzz groups

see Discussion
see Small Group Instruction

Case Studies

see also Discovery Learning see also Discussion see also Inquiry Learning see also Problem Method see also Small Group Instruction

Coaching

see Tutoring

Cognitive Processing Models

see Advance Organizers see Discovery Learning see Inquiry Learning see Problem Method see Task Analysis

Colloguy

see Discussion
see Lectures
see Questioning
see Resource Persons



Community Resources

see Cooperative Education and Service Study

see Experiential Methods

see Field Trips

see Resource Persons

Competency-Based Instruction

see also Audio-Tutorial Method

see also Independent Study

see also Individualized Instruction

see also Personalized System of Instruction

see also Reinforcement

Computer-Assisted Instruction

see also Audiovisual Aids

see also Demonstrations

see also Drill and Practice

see also independent Study

see also individualized instruction

see also Programmed Instruction

see also Questioning

see also Reinforcement

see also Reviewing and Summarizing

see also Simulations and Games

see also Socratic Method

see also Tutoring

see also Videodiscs

Concentrated Study

see Independent Study

Concept Teaching

see Advance Organizers

see Discovery Learning

see inquiry Learning

see Problem Method



Conditioning

see Reinforcement

Contingency Systems see Reinforcement

Contract Learning

see also Cooperative Education and Service Study see also Experiential Methods see also Independent Study see also Individualized Instruction see also Projects and Reports

Convergent Thinking

see Advance Organizers see Discovery Learning see Problem Method

Conversation Method

see Discussion see Problem Method see Questioning see Socratic Method

Cooperative Education and Service Study see also Contract Learning see also Experiential Education see also Independent Study see also Tutoring

Cooperative Learning see Role Playing see Simulations and Games see Small Group Instruction

Correspondence Study see Distance Education



Criterion-Referenced Education see Competency-Based Instruction

Critical Incidents Analysis see Case Studies see Role Playing

Debates

see Assignments
see Discussion
sec Role Playing
see Simulations and Games
see Small Group Instruction

Deductive Methods

see Advance Organizers see Discovery Learning see Problem Method

Delivery Systems

see Assignments see Audio-Tutorial Method see Audiovisual Aids

see Books and Readings

see Case Studies

see Computer-Assisted Instruction

see Cooperative Education and Service Study

see Demonstrations

see Experiential Methods

see Field Trips

see Laboratory Method

see Learning Centers

see Lectures

see Programmed Instruction

see Projects and Reports

see Resource Persons

see Simulations and Games



Delivery Systems (cont.)

see Television and Film
see Videodiscs

Demonstrations

see also Audiovisual Aids see also Computer-Assisted Instruction see also Laboratory Method see also Lectures

Development Model

see Discussion see Problem Method see Questioning see Socratic Method

Dialogue

see Discussions see Questioning see Socratic Method see Tutoring

Didactic Teaching

see Assignments
see Drill and Practice
see Lectures
see Questioning
see Recitation
see Reviewing and Summarizing
see Socratic Method
see Tutoring

Direct Instruction

see Advance Organizers see Assignments see Audio-Tutorial Method see Audiovisual Aids see Books and Readings



Direct Instruction (cont.)

see Computer-Assisted Instruction

see Demonstrations

see Drill and Practice

see Lectures

see Recitation

see Reinforcement

see Reviewing and Summarizing

see Team Teaching

see Television and Film

see Videodiscs

Directed Study

see Assignments

Discovery Learning

see also Advance Organizers

see also Case Studies

see also Cooperative Education and Service Study

see also Discussion

see also Experiential Methods

see also Independent Study

see also inquiry Learning

see also Laboratory Method

see also Learning Centers

see also Problem Method

see also Questioning

see also Role Playing

see also Simulations and Games

see also Socratic Method

see also Tutoring



Discussion

see also Case Studies
see also Discovery Learning
see also Inquiry Learning
see also Lectures
see also Small Group Instruction
see also Team Teaching

Distance Education

see also Independent Study see also Lectures see also Television and Film

Divergent Thinking

see Discovery Learning
see Inquiry Learning
see Problem Method Dramatization
see Role Playing

Dramatization

see Role Playing

Drill and Practice

see also Assignments
see also Computer-Assisted Instruction
see also Questioning
see also Recitation
see also Reinforcement
see also Reviewing and Summarizing
see also Simulations and Games
see also Tutoring

Essays

see Assignments see Projects and Reports



Experiential Methods

see also Assignments

see also Contract Learning

see ~1so Cooperative Education and Service Study

see also Discovery Learning

see also Field Trips

see also Independent Study

see also in 'ry Learning

see also Laburatory Method

see also Learning Resource Centers

see also Projects and Reports

see also Role Playing

see also Simulations and Games

Exercises

see Assignments

see Drill and Practice

Exhibits

see Audiovisual Aids

Experts

see Resource Persons

see Team Teaching

see Tutoring

Expository Teaching

see Advance Organizers

see Books and Readings

see Lectures

see Television and Film

Feedback

see Competency-Based Instruction

see Computer-Assisted Instruction

see Personalized System of Instruction

see Programmed Instruction

see Questioning



Feedback (cont.)

see Recitation

see Reinforcement

see Tutoring

Field Experiences

see Contract Learning

see Cooperative Education and Service Study

see Experiential Methods

see Independent Study

Field Trips

see also Audiovisual Aids

see also Experiential Methods

see also Resource Persons

Films

see Audiovisual Aids

see Television and Films

Fishbow1

see Discussion

see Small Group Instruction

Flexistudy

see Independent Study

Forum Discussions

see Discussions

see Resource Persons

see Team Teaching

Games

see Simulations and Games



Group-Centered Approaches

see Case Studies

see Discussion

see Role Playing

see Simulations and Games

see Small Group Instruction

Guest Speakers

see Resource Persons

Guided Design

see Discussion

see Experiential Methods

see Programmed Instruction

see Small Group Instruction

Guided Practice

see Assignments

see Drill and Practice

Guided Study

see Assignments

see Independent Study

see Tutoring

Handouts

see Audiovisual Aids

see Books and Readings

see Lectures

Heuristics

see Case Studies

see Discovery Learning

see Inquiry Learning

see Problem Method

see Simulations and Games

see Socratic Method



Hierarchical Arrangements see Advance Organizers see Task Analysis

Home Study

see Distance Education see Independent Study

Homework

see Assignments see Projects and Reports

in-basket Exercise see Simulations and Games

Incident Process Method see Case Studies

Independent Study

see also Assignments

see also Audio-Tutorial Method

see also Competency-Based Instruction

see also Computer-Assisted Instruction

see also Contract Learning

see also Cooperative Education and Service Study

see also Discovery Learning

see also Distance Education

see also Experiential Methods

see also Individualized Instruction

see also Learning Centers

see also Personalized System of Instruction

see also Projects and Reports

see also Resource Persons



Individualized Instruction

see also Audio-Tutorial Method

see also Competency-Based Instruction

see also Computer-Assisted Instruction

see also Contract Learning

see also Cooperative Education and Service Study

see also Independent Study

see also Learning Resource Centers

see also Personalized System of Instruction

see also Programmed Instruction

see also Projects and Reports

see also Socratic Method

see also Tutoring

Inductive Methods

see Discovery Learning

see inquiry Learning

see Problem Method

Information Processing Models

see Advance Organizers

see Discovery Learning

see Inquiry Learning

see Problem Method

see Task Analysis Inquiry Learning

see also Advance Organizers

see also Case Studies

see also Cooperative Education and Service Study

see also Discovery Learning

see also Discussion

see also Experiential Methods

see also Laboratory Method

see also Problem Method

see also Questioning

see also Role Playing

see also Simulations and Games

see also Socratic Method



Inquiry Learning

see also Advance Organizers

see also Case Studies

see also Cooperative Education and Service Study

see also Discovery Learning

see also Discussion

see also Experiential Methods

see also Laboratory Method

see also Problem Method

see also Questioning

see also Role Playing

see also Simulations and Games

see also Socratic Method

Instructional Materials

see Advance Organizers

see Audio-Tutorial Method

see Audiovisual Aids

see Books and Readings

see Computer-Assisted Instruction

see Programmed Instructions

see Television and Film

see Videodiscs

Internships

see Contract Learning

see Experiential Methods

see Independent Study

Keller Plan

see Competency-Based Instruction

see Individualized Instruction

see Personalized System of Instruction



Laboratory Method

see also Audio-Tutorial Method

see also Audiovisual Aids

see also Cooperative Education and Service Study

see also Demonstrations

see also Discovery Learning

see also Experiential Methods

see also inquiry Learning

see also Learning Centers

see also Problem Method

see also Small Group Instruction

Learner-Controlled Instruction

see Computer-Assisted Instruction

see Individualized Instruction

see Programmed Instruction

see Reinforcement

see Tutoring

see Videodiscs

Learning-By-Doing

see Cooperative Education and Service Study

see Drill and Practice

see Experiential Methods

see Laboratory Method

see Projects and Reports

Learning Cells

see Books and Readings

see Questioning

see Small Group Instruction

see Tutoring

Learning Centers

see also Assignments

see also Audio-Tutorial Method

see also Books and Readings

see also Discovery Learning



Learning Centers (cont.)

see also Experiential Methods see also Independent Study see also Individualized Instruction see also Laboratory Method see also Small Group Instruction see also Videodiscs

Learning Contracts see Contract Learning

Learning Modules and Packets

see Audio-Tutorial Method
see Competency-Based Instruction
see Computer-Assisted Instruction
see Distance Learning
see Independent Study
see Individualized Instruction
see Learning Centers
see Personalized System of Instruction
see Projects and Reports

Lectures

see also Advance Organizers
see also Audio-Tutorial Method
see also Audiovisual Aids
see also Demonstrations
see also Discussion
see also Distance Education
see also Questioning
see also Resource Persons
see also Reviewing and Summarizing
see also Team Teaching

Literature Search

see Assignments see Projects and Reports



Mastery Learning

see Competency-Based Instruction

Mathetics

see Demonstrations see Drill and Practice see Task Analysis

Memorization

see Drill and Practice see Recitation

Mini-Course

see Independent Study see Learning Centers see Reinforcement see Small Group Instruction

Models

see Audiovisual Aids see Demonstrations see Laboratory Method see Simulations and Games

Modules

see Audio-Tutorial Method
see Competency-Based Instruction
see Computer-Assisted Instruction
see Independent Study
see Individualized Instruction
see Learning Centers
see Personalized System of Instruction

Observational Learning

see Audiovisual Aids see Cooperative Education and Service Study see Demonstrations see Experiential Methods



Observational Learning (cont.)

see Field Trips

see Laboratory Method

see Reinforcement

see Television and Film

see Videodiscs

One-on-one instruction

see Tutoring

Open Education

see Contract Learning

see Discovery Learning

see Distance Education

see Independent Study

see Learning Centers

Oral Reports

see Assignments

see Projects and Reports

see Recitation

Organizational Structures

see Audio-Tutorial Method

see Computer-Assisted Instruction

see Competency-Based Instruction

see Contract Learning

see Cooperative Education and Service Study

see Discovery Learning

see Distance Education

see Independent Study

see Individualized Instruction

see Inquiry Learning

see Learning Centers

see Personalized System of Instruction

see Programmed Instruction



Organizational Structures (cont.)

see Reinforcement

see Small Group Instruction

see Team Teaching

see Tutoring

Panel Discussions

see Discussion

see Questions

see Resource Persons

see Small Group Instruction

see Team Teaching

Papers

see Projects and Reports

Parrainage

see Tutoring

Peer Teaching

see Discussion

see Small Group Instruction

see Tutoring

Performance-Based Education

see Competency-Based Education

Personalized System of Instruction

see also Competency-Based Instruction

see also Independent Study

see also Individualized Instruction

see also Programmed Instruction

see also Reinforcement



Practice Methods

see Assignments

see Cooperative Education and Service Study

see Drill and Practice

see Recitation

Practicums

See Contract Learning

see Coperative Education and Service Study

see Experiential Methods

see Independent Study

Presentation Methods

see Advance Organizers

see Assignments

see Audio-Tutorial Method

see Books and Readings

see Computer-Assisted Instruction

see Demonstrations

see Distance Education

see Drill and Practice

see Field Trips

see Lectures

see Resource Persons

see Reviewing and Summarizing

see Team Teaching

see Television and Film

see Videodiscs

Printed Materials

see Books and Readings

Problem Method

see also Advance Organizers

see also Assignments

see also Case Studies

see also Discovery Learning

see also inquiry Learning



Problem Method (cont.)

see also Laboratory Method see also Simulations and Games see also Socratic Method

see also Task Analysis

Proctors

see Competency-Based Education see Personalized System of Instruction see Tutors

Programmed Instruction

see also Audio-Tutorial Method

see also Computer-Assisted Instruction

see also Individualized Instruction

see also Personalized System of Instruction

see also Reinforcement

see also Socratic Method

see also Task Analysis

Projects and Reports

see also Assignments

see also Contract Learning

see also Experiential Methods

sae also Independent Study

see also Individualized Instruction

see also Small Group Instruction

Questioning

see also Computer-Assisted Instruction

see also Discovery Learning

see also Drill and Practice

see also Inquiry Learning

see also Lectures

see also Recitation

see also Reinforcement

see also Socratic Method

see also Tutoring



15

Readings

see Books and Readings

Reception Learning

see Advance Organizers

see Audiovisual Aids

see Books and Readings

see Computer-Assisted Instruction

see Demonstrations

see Lectures

see Reviewing and Summarizing

see Television and Film

see Videodiscs

Recitation

see also Assignments

see also Books and Readings

see also Drill and Practice

see also Questioning

see also Reinforcement

see also Socratic Method

Recordings

see Audiovisual Aids

see Television and Film

see Videodiscs

Reflective Thinking

see Assignments

see Discovery Learning

see Discussion

see inquiry Learning

see Problem Method

see Questioning

see Socratic Method

see Tutoring



Reinforcement

see also Competency-Based Instruction
see also Computer-Assisted Instruction
see also Drill and Practice
see also Individualized Instruction
see also Personalized System of Instruction
see also Programmed Instruction
see also Questioning
see also Recitation
see also Reviewing and Summarizing
see also Task Analysis
see also Tutoring

Reports

see Projects and Reports

Research Papers

see Projects and Reports

Resource Centers

see Audio-Tutorial Method see Independent Study see Individualized Instruction see Learning Resource Centers

Resource Persons

see also Cooperative Education and Service Study see also Field Trips see also Independent Study see also Lectures see also Team Teaching see also Tutoring

Reviewing and Summarizing

see also Computer-Assisted Instruction see also Drill and Practice see also Lectures see also Reinforcement



Role Playing

see also Discovery Learning

see also Experiential Methods

see also inquiry Learning

see also Simulations and Games

see also Small Group Instruction

Rote Learning

see Assignments

see Books and Readings

see Computar-Assisted Instruction

see Drill and Practice

see Lectures

see Recitation

See Reviewing and Summarizing

see Television and Film

Seatwork

see Assignments

see Drill and Practice

Self-Designed, Self-Directed or Self-Guided Instruction

see Contract Learning

see Independent Study

see Individualized Instruction

Self-Instructional Modules

see Audio-Tutorial Method

see Distance Education

see Independent Study

see Individualized Instruction

see Learning Centers

see Personalized System of Instruction



Seminars

see Discussion see Independent Study see Resource Persons see Small Group Instruction see Tutoring

Service Study

see Cooperative Education and Service Study

Simulations and Games

see also Computer-Assisted Instruction see also Discovery Learning see also Experiential Methods see also Inquiry Learning see also Problem Method see also Role Playing see also Small Group Instruction see also Videodiscs

Small Group Instruction

see also Case Studies
see also Discussion
see also Laboratory Method
see also Learning Centers
see also Projects and Reports
see also Role Playing
see also Simulations and Games
see also Tutoring

Socialized Recitation see Recitation

Social Learning see Reinforcement

Sociodrama see Role Playing



Socratic Method

see also Computer-Assisted Instruction

see also Discovery Learning

see also individualized instruction

see also inquiry Learning

see also Problem Method

see also Programmed Instruction

see also Questioning

see also Recitation

see also Tutoring

Student-Centered Methods and Approaches

see Audio-Tutorial Method

see Competency-Based instruction

see Computer-Assisted instruction

see Contract Learning

see Cooperative Education and Service Study

see Discovery Learning

see Experiential Methods

see Field Trips

see independent Study

see individualized instruction

see inquiry Learning

see Laboratory Method

see Learning Centers

see Personalized System of Instruction

see Problem Method

see Programmed Instruction

see Projects and Reports

see Reinforcement

see Role Playing

see Simulations and Games

see Socratic Method

see Tutoring



Subject-Matter Approaches

see Advance Organizers

see Discovery Learning

see Inquiry Learning

see Problem Method

see Projects and Reports

see Task Analysis

Supervised Study

see Assignments

see Independent Study

Supplementary Readings

see Books and Readings

Synergogy

see Small Group instruction

Task Analysis

see also Advance Organizers

see also Problem Method

see also Programmed Instruction

see also Reinforcement

Teacher-Centered Methods and Approaches

see Advance Organizers

see Assignments

see Audiovisual Aids

see Books and Readings

see Computer-Assisted Instruction

see Demonstrations

see Drill and Practice

see Lectures

see Questioning

see Recitation

see Resource Persons

see Reviewing and Summarizing



Teacher-Centered Methods and Approaches (cont.)

see Socratic Method

see Team Teaching

see Television and Film

see Videodiscs

Teaching Machines

see Audio-Tutorial Method

see Computer-Assisted Instruction

see Learning Centers

see Programmed Instruction

see Reinforcement

see Television and Film

see Videodiscs

Teaching Methods

see Advance Organizers

see Assignments

see Case Studies

see Demonstrations

see Discovery Lear ing

see Discussion

see Drill and Fractice

see Experiential Methods

see Field Trips

see inquiry Learning

see Laboratory Method

see Learning Centers

see Lectures

see Personalized System of Instruction

see Problem Method

see Programmed Instruction

see Questioning

see Recitation

see Reinforcement

see Reviewing and Summarizing

see Role Playing



Teaching Methods (cont.)

see Simulations and Games

see Socratic Method

see Task Analysis

see Tutoring

Team Teaching

see also Discussion

see also Lectures

see also Resource Persons

Teams

see Small Group Instruction

Television and Film

see also Audiovisual Aids

see also Distance Education

Term Papers

see Projects and Reports

Textbooks

see Books and Readings

Token Economy

see Reinforcement

Tutorials

see Discussion

see Small Group Instruction

see Socratic Method

see Tutoring

Tutoring

see also Audio-Tutorial Method

see also Computer-Assisted Instruction

see also Cooperative Education and Service Study

see also Discovery Learning



Tutoring (cont.)

see also Drill and Practice

see also Individualized Instruction

see also Questioning

see also Reinforcement

see also Small Group Instruction

see also Socratic Method

Unit Packages and Plans

see Competency-Based Instruction

see Distance Education

see Independent Study

see Individualized Instruction

see Learning Centers

see Personalized System of Instruction

see Problem Method

see Projects and Reports

Verbal Learning

see Advance Organizers

see Audio-Tutorial Method

see Books and Readings

see Computer-Assisted Instruction

see Discussion

see Lectures

see Programmed Instruction

see Questioning

see Recitation

see Socratic Method

Videodiscs

see also Audiovisual Aids

see also Computer-Assisted Instruction

see also Learning Centers

see also Simulations and Games



Videotapes

see Television and Film see Videodiscs

Visits

see Audiovisual Aids see Cooperative Education and Service Study see Experiential Methods see Field Trips see Resource Persons

Visual Learning

see Audiovisual Aids
see Computer-Assisted Instruction
see Demonstrations
see Field Trips
see Laboratory Method
see Television and Film
see Videodiscs

Work Experience

see Contract Learning see Cooperative Education and Service Study see Experiential Methods see Independent Study

Workshops

see Discussions see Laboratory Method see Small Group Instruction

Written Assignments

see Assignments see Drill and Practice see Projects and Reports



BIBLIOGRAPHY

- Berliner, David C. and Gage, N.L. "The Psychology of Teaching Methods" In *The Psychology of Teaching Methods*, edited by N. L. Gage, pp. 1-29. Seventy-fifth Yearbook of the National Society for the Study of Education, part 1. Chicago, IL: University of Chicago Press, 1976.
- Blount, Nathan S. and Klausmeier, Herbert J. *Teaching in the Secondary School*. 3rd ed. New York, NY: Harper and Row, Publishers, 1968.
- Clark, Leonard H. and Starr, Irving S. *Secondary School Teaching Methods*. 3rd ed. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing Co., Inc., 1976; London, England: Collier Macmillan Publishers, 1976.
- Huczynski, Andrzej. *Encyclopedia of Management Development Methods*. Aldershot, Hants, England: Gower Publishing Co. Ltd., 1983.
- Hyman, Ronald T. Ways of Teaching. 2nd ed. New York, NY: J. B. Lippincott Company, 1984.
- Joyce, Bruce and Weil, Marsha. *Models of Teaching*. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1972.
- Laska, John. "The Four Basic Methods of Instruction." *Educational Technology* 24 (June 1984): 42-44.
- McKeachie, Wilbert J. *Teaching Tips: A Guidebook for the Beginning Teacher*. 7th ed. Lexington, MA: D. C. Heath and Co., 1978.
- Miller, John P. *The Educational Spectrum: Orientations to Curriculum*. New York, NY and London, England: Longman, Inc., 1983.



136

Nuthall, Graham and Snook, Ivan. "Contemporary Models of Teaching." In Second Handbook of Research on Teaching, edited by Robert M.W. Travers, pp. 47-76. Chicago, IL: Rand McNally and Co., 1973.

Thesaurus of ERIC Descriptors. 10th ed. Phoenix, AZ: Oryx Press, 1984.

Thut, I. N. and Gerberich, J. Raymond. Foundations of Method for Secondary Schools. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill Book Company, Inc., 1949.



VITA

Tara Lynn Fulton was born in Ridgewood, New Jersey on January 16, 1958. Her father, John Fulton, is a retired English professor, and her mother, Anna May Fulton, was a home economist. After completing her work at Kinnelon High School in Kinnelon, New Jersey in 1975, Tara entered Indiana University in Bloomington, Indiana to pursue a bachelor's degree in German. She spent her senior year at the University of Hamburg in Hamburg, West Germany through Indiana University's overseas study program. She received a Bachelor of Arts degree in August, 1979. She immediately entered the Graduate School of Library and Information Science at Indiana University and was awarded the M.L.S. in January, 1981.

From March, 1981 through August, 1982 she was a reference librarian at Texas A&M University, at the same time beginning coursework towards a Master of Arts in Education. In September, 1982 she became Education Bibliographer/Reference Librarian at The University of Texas at Austin. She has been enrolled part-time in the College of Education since July, 1983.



Tara has served as advertisement and subscription manager and as a columnist for Education Libraries and as a member and chair of the Bibliographic Instruction for Educators Committee of the Education and Behavioral Sciences Section of the Association of College and Research Libraries. She has presented two papers: 1) "A Learner's Perspective on Bibliographer Training" at the 103rd Annual Meeting of the American Library Association on June 14, 1984 in Dallas, Texas, and 2) "Collaboration: Prospect or imperative" at the 82nd Annual Meeting of the Society of Professors of Education on February 1, 1984 in San Antonio, Texas, which was published by the society in February, 1985 as part of a monograph edited by Ayers Bagley entitled *Profescors of Education and Education* Librarians: Prospects for Collaboration. Her publications include "Writing for Professional Publication," a bibliography of sources for publishing in education journals, published in the Winter 1985 issue of *Education* Libraries and a variety of logic problems in Dell Crossword Publications.

Her husband of three years, John Daniel Marshall, is an educator, scholar, and humanist. He has accepted a faculty position at the National College of Education in Evanston, Illinois and Tara has accepted a position at Northwestern University Library to begin August, 1985.

